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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton,
Texas (“the Authority”), which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2014 and 2013,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibiﬁty for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in -
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the
changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas' basic financial statements. The HUD Financial
Data Schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The HUD Financial Data Schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the HUD Financial Data Schedule and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 29, 2015 on
our consideration of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas' internal controf over financial reporting
and on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and comptiance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wi, Eugbong, Dol Torm§ Se

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC
Denton, Texas

June 28, 2015



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

The following is an analysis of the financial performance of the Housing Authority of the City of
Denton, Texas (the “Authority”). It is intended to provide the reader with an overview of the
Authority’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. The information
contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the Authority’s basic financial
statements.

Financial Highlights

The Authority’s total assets increased from $6,080,974 to $6,989,951, an increase of $908,977
or 14.9%.

The unrestricted net position balance is $2,241,534 at September 30, 2014. This represents an
increase of $222,111, or 11.0% from the previous year. Unrestricted net position represents the
amount of available funds for future appropriations.

Operating revenues decreased from $12,839,116 to $12,762,871, a decrease of $76,245 or
0.6% primarily due to the decrease in the Section 8 Voucher funding.

Operating expenses decreased by $1,611,005 to $11,806,942 for the current year. The
decrease was primarily due to a decrease in housing assistance payments.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of basic financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
Management's Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative of the Authority’s financial
performance and activities for the year ended September 30, 2014. The basic statements
provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances. The notes provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial
statements.



The basic financial statements consist of three statements:

1. The Statement of Net Position provides information on all the Authority’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial situation
of the Authority is improving.

2. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Certain revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement that will result in cash flows in future periods.

3. The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing how the Authority’s cash
changed during the most recent fiscal year. It shows the sources and uses of cash.

The Authority’s housing programs include the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Management
Program, and DHAP. The Housing Choice Voucher Program provides rental assistance to aid
low income families to afford decent, safe and sanitary rental housing. The Authority provides
rental assistance in the form of a Housing Assistance Payment to a landlord on behalf of the
tenant. The DHAP program ended, however, the Authority still holds funds totaling $81,827
related to that program that are currently restricted. The Authority currently has 1,526 baseline
units available. Funds are provided by HUD to provide rental assistance payments. The
Authority is provided an administrative fee for the purpose of covering the administrative costs
of the program. The fee is preset by HUD on an annual basis. The Authority administers a
management fund designed to perform asset management responsibilities for additional
properties. Payment for the Authority’s administrative office and other rental properties support
the Management Program. ‘

The Authority organized the Denton Public Facility Corporation (DPFC) in December 2012 to
receive and operate a twenty-four unit low-income housing facility. The Authority owned a
portion of the general partner of Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. which held the
facility. After the fifteen-year compliance period related to tax credits expired, the limited partner
transferred the entire interest in the facility to DPFC. The Authority must operate the facility
under the supervision of the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for an
additional fifteen years.

Renaissance Courts is a multi-family project that received a tax credits award from Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs for the development of a 150 unit town-home
style, affordable housing project. The development provides for mixed income and market rate
rents. The Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation to serve as the
general partner of Renaissance Courts, L.P. a limited partnership to fund and operate the
project. Funding comes from the limited partners purchasing the tax credits and a HUD insured
221 (d)4 mortgage. Operation of Renaissance Courts is managed by an outside management
group and funded from rental revenues. The Authority received a developer fee this fiscal year
and is still to receive additional deferred developer fees in the future, based on the project’s
cash flow.



Authority Activities & Highlights

The Authority's overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized
below based on the information in the current and prior financial statements. The table below
lists the asset and liability comparisons for the years ended September 30, 2014 and
September 30, 2013.

Statement of Net Position

Change
Category FYE 2014 FYE 2013 %

Current Assets — Unrestricted $ 2,150,768 |$ 2,189,446 -1.8%
Current Assets - Restricted 1,035,522 285,700 262.5%
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 3,590,058 3,605,828 - 4%
Other Non-Current Assets 213,603 - 100.0%
Total Assets 6,989,951 6,080,974 14.9%
Current Liabilities 122,837 170,023 -27.8%
Non-Current Liabilities - - 0.0%
Total Liabilities 122,837 170,023 -27.8%
Unrestricted 2,241,534 2,019,423 11.0%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,590,058 3,605,828 - 4%
Restricted ’ 1,035,522 285,700 262.5%
Total Net Position $ 6,867,114 |$ 5,910,951 16.2%

Assets

The decrease in current assets-unrestricted was due to a decrease in cash as a result of lower
administrative fee income. The increase in current assets-restricted, is due the Authority
receiving more funds from HUD than it expended for tenant rents. The decrease in capital
assets was due to depreciation expense being greater than the total of new capital
expenditures. Other non-current assets is a receivable from a related housing development.
The Authority advanced funds to refinance existing debt on the development.

Liabilities

Current liabilities decreased primarily due to a decrease in accounts payable and a payable due
to HUD.

Net Position

The Authority’s unrestricted net position increased slightly due to the receipt of insurance
proceeds in the current year where the expenditures will not take place until the next fiscal year.
The net investment in capital assets decreased slightly due to depreciation expense exceeding
new capital outlays. Restricted net position increased due to a decrease in housing assistance
payments.



Statement of Revenues & Expenses

Change
Category FYE 2014 FYE 2013 Y%

HUD Operating Granis $ 11,082,544 |3 11,659,994 -5.0%
Tenant Revenue 687,096 617,063 11.3%
interest Income 2,263 2,746 -17.6%
Other Revenue 993,231 562,059 76.7%

Total Revenue 12,765,134 12,841,862 -0.6%
Administration 1,178,336 1,331,923 -11.5%
Tenant Services 5,661 3,644 55.4%
Utilities 100,673 89,484 12.5%
Ordinary Maintenance 372,318 281,619 32.2%
General Expense 61,404 57,490 6.8%
Depreciation 221,126 195,914 12.9%
Housing Assistance Payments 9,867,424 11,529,873 -14.4%
Loss on disposition of asset 2,029 - 100.0%

Total Expenses $ 11,808,971 % 13,489,947 -12.5%

Results of Operations
Revenues

Operating revenues of the Authority are generated principally from dwelling rents, Section 8
Administrative fees, HUD grants, and rental assistance payments. The Authority’s revenues
decreased by $76,728. The primary reason for the decrease in revenue was a decrease in
Section 8 voucher funding, partially offset by an increase in tenant revenue, insurance proceeds
and other income.  Tenant revenue increased due to the inclusion of the property acquired
from the Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. for a full twelve months. Interest income
decreased due to decreasing interest rates paid by banks. The increase in other revenue is due
to increased payments received from other housing authorities with clients living in the
Authority’s boundaries.

Expenses

Total expenses decreased by $1,608,976 over the prior year. Administrative expenses
decreased due to broad cost cutting across several areas including salaries, legal, postage and
others. Utilities increased as North Texas had a warmer summer than the previous year.
Ordinary maintenance increased due to additional maintenance issues with Heritage Oaks. The
increase in general expense was due to increase in miscellaneous expenses. The increase in
depreciation expense was due to the property acquired from the Denton Senior Housing
Development, L.P. Housing assistance payments decreased as the Authority changed its
payment standard and did not fill some vacancies due to the federal government budget
tightening. '



Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2014, the Authority’s investment in capital assets was $ 3,590,058. This
investment includes land, building, building improvements, office equipment, and maintenance
equipment. The decrease in capital assets is the result of depreciation expense exceeding
current year capital outlays.

Change

Category FYE 2014 FYE 2013 %
Land 3 1,203,916 $ 1,203,916 0.0%
Buildings and improvements 7,694 337 7,504,223 2.5%
Equipment 329,863 332,225 | -0.7%
Accumulated Depreciation (5,638,058) (5,434,536) 3.7%
Total Net Fixed Assets 3 3,590,058 $ 3,605,828 -0.4%

Future Economic Factors

The Authority will continue to use excess HAP funds to cover funding shortfalls from HUD.
The Authority will continue to receive developer fee revenues from Renaissance Courts and
income from commercial buildings. The Authority received more than $290,000 in insurance
proceeds in the current fiscal year. These funds will be expended in the upcoming year to
repair damages caused by storms.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s accountability
for all those interested. If you should have additional questions regarding the financial
information, contact the Executive Director at Denton Housing Authority, 1225 Wilson Street,
Denton, TX 76205.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable - HUD
Investments
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:

Due from related party - net

Capital assets
Land
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - HUD
Accrued salaries payable
Security deposits payable
Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

2014 2013
1,720,687 1,799,442
1,035,522 285,700

6,133 7,598
24,007 -
379,450 378,548
20,491 3,858
3,186,290 2,475,146
213,603 -
1,203,916 1,203,916
7,694,337 7,504,223
329,863 332,225
(5,638,058) (5,434,536)
3,803,661 3,605,828
6,989,951 6,080,974
27,763 48,755
- 31,434
73,024 71,234
22,050 18,600
122,837 170,023
3,590,058 3,605,828
1,035,522 285,700
2,241,534 2,019,423
6,867,114 5,910,951




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Operating Revenue:
Tenant revenue 3 687,096 3 617,063
Federal housing grants 11,082,544 11,659,994
Management income and other operating revenue 993,231 562,059
Total Operating Revenues 12,762,871 12,839,116
Operating Expenses:
Administration 1,178,336 1,331,923
Housing assistance payments 9,867,424 11,629,873
Tenant services 5,661 3,644
Utilities 100,673 89,484
Maintenance 372,318 281,619
Insurance 26,346 23,080
General expenses 3,462 1,028
Bad debt expense 31,596 33,382
Depreciation 221,126 195,914
Total Operating Expenses 11,806,942 13,489,947
Operating income (l.oss) 955,929 (650,831)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 2,263 2,746
Gain/(loss) on disposition of asset (2,029) -
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 234 2,746
Special Iltem - net - 808,720
Change in net position 956,163 160,635
Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,910,951 5,750,316
Net Position, End of Year $ 6,867,114 $ 5,910,951

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from HUD $ 11,027,103 % 11,693,863
Cash received from tenants and other housing authorities 1,217,797 1,049,031
Cash received from other sources 435,848 98,216
Cash payments for rent and utility assistance (9,867,424) (11,529,873)
Cash payments for administrative and operating expenses {(1,722,630) (1,693,780)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,090,694 (382,543)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments 2,263 2,746
Cash from special item - 53,429
Acquisition of capital assets (207,385) (83,618)
Sale (Purchase) of investments (902) (1,526)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (206,024) (28,969)
Cash Fiows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash advanced to related party (213,603) -
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities (213,603) -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 671,067 (411,512)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 2,085,142 2,496,654
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year (includes restricted cash of $1,035,522
and $285,700 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively) $ 2,756,209 $ 2,085,142

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

2014 2013
Reconciliation of Net Operating income to
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Net operating income (loss) $ 955,929 $ (650,831)
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation 221,126 195,914
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-net 1,465 9,748
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-HUD (24,007) 2,435
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses (16,633) 17,189
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (20,992) 5,293
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - HUD (31,434) 31,434
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries payable 1,790 8,664
Increase (decrease) in security deposits payable 3,450 (908)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1,090,694 § (381,162)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the "Authority") is a governmental
entity with the purpose of providing low income families with reasonable assistance for
housing, giving consideration and care for their well -being, and promoting family self-
sufficiency to all families without discrimination. The Authority primarily serves the
residents of Denton County, Texas. The Authority's primary funding source is the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development under the Section 8 Rental Voucher
Program.

Basis of Presentation

The activities of the Authority are similar to those of proprietary funds of local cities and
therefore are reported as an enterprise fund in accordance with governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Accordingly, transactions are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Under Alternative 1 of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority has elected to apply all standards issued on
or before November 30, 1989, by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), in
addition to all GASB standards.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The Authority records capital assets at cost and provides for depreciation using the
straight-line method over the respective estimated useful lives. Furniture and equipment
are depreciated over five years. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over thirty
to forty years. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is charged to operating
expenses as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Authority is not subject to income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents — restricted represents excess HAP and
DHAP funds. See Restricted Net Position.

12



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Net Position

The Authority receives payments from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") in monthly installments as determined at the beginning of the year
based on anticipated needs. At the end of the year, HUD determines how much of the
advanced funds were earned by the Authority. Differences in the amounts advanced
and the amount earned create excess HAP funds. The Authority must calculate the
excess HAP funds, but keeps the excess funds to use towards any funding shortages in
future periods. The funds may only be used in connection with the rental voucher
program. The Authority calculated the excess funding of $1,035,522 and $285,700 as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which it shows as restricted net position in
the statement of net position and as cash and cash equivalents — restricted.

The balances of the restricted net position accounts for voucher programs are as
follows:

2014 2013
Excess HAP — Section 8 Voucher $ 953,695 % 203,873
Excess HAP - DHAP 81,827 81,827
Total restricted assets — voucher
programs $ 1,035522 § 285,700

See also Note 3.

Compensated Absences

Regular, full-time employees receive compensation for vacations, holidays, iliness, and
certain other qualifying absences. Compensated absences, which have been earned
but not paid, have been accrued in the accompanying basic financial statements. For all
compensated absences, the liability is valued using pay rates in effect at the end of the
Authority’s fiscal year.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future fiscal periods are
recorded as prepaid expenses.

13



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Authority values cash, cash equivalents, investments, receivables and current
liabilities at their carrying amounts reported in the financial statements due to the short
maturities of those instruments.

Date of Management’s Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 29, 2015, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 - REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority, for financial purposes, includes all of the accounts relevant to the
operations of the Authority. The financial statements presented herein do not include
agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct
units of government apart from the Authority. The Authority is governed by a five
member Board of Commissioners, who are appointed by the City of Denton, Texas City
Council.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Deposits, including those in restricted assets, are defined as cash or cash equivalents
on deposit with financial institutions. At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the
Authority’s deposits was $2,756,209 and the bank balance was $2,765,115. The bank
deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’s name. At September 30, 2014, all of the Authority’s deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities. At September 30, 2013, the carrying amount
of the Authority’s deposits was $2,085,142 and the bank balance was $2,115,981. The
bank deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’s name. At September 30, 2013, all of the Authority’s deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities.

14



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 3 ~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at September 30:

2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents — unrestricted $ 1,720,687 $ 1,799,442
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 1,035,522 285,700
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 2,756,209 $ 2,085,142

. Investments
The Authority’s investments consist of bank certificates of deposit. The certificates of

deposit total $379,450 and $378,548 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
The certificates of deposit are insured up to $250,000 per financial institution.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk, for deposits and investments that are certificates of deposits, is the
risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. As
of September 30, 2014 and 2013, the Authority's deposits were either collateralized or
covered by FDIC insurance. For sixteen days during the fiscal year ended September
30, 2014 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged collateral. The largest amount
exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged collateral was $799,682. For fourteen days
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral. The largest amount exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged
collateral was $801,200.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an instrument. The Authority’s investments were in certificates of deposits with
maturities no longer than two years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparts to an investment in debt
securities will not fulfill its obligation. The Authority’s deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage sixteen and fourteen days
during the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the
Authority’s investment in a single issuer. The Authority’s deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage sixteen and fourteen days
during the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

15



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 4 — Capital Asset Activity

Capital asset activity for the Authority for the year ended September 30, 2014, was as

follows:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land

Total assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

Balance Retirement/ Balance

Oct. 1 Additions Adjustment Sept. 30
1,203,916 $ - % - 1,203,916
1,203,916 - - 1,203,916
7,504,223 194,795 (4,681) 7,694,337
332,225 12,590 (14,952) 329,863
7,836,448 207,385 (19,633) 8,024,200
(5,212,482) (181,233) (2,652) (5,391,063)
(222,054) (39,893) (14,952) (246,995)
(5,434,536) (221,126) (17,604) (5,638,058)
2,401,912 (13,741) (2,029) 2,386,142
3,605,828 $ (13,741) % (2,029) % 3,590,058

NOTE 5 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Authority

manages its risk of these types of losses through the purchase of commercial insurance.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year, nor
have there been settlements in excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three

fiscal years.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 6 ~ EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority maintains an employee retirement plan for all full-time employees after 90
days of employment. The plan is a defined contribution plan. The Authority contributes
7% of eligible employees' compensation, and employees may make voluntary
contributions of up to 10% of their compensation. For the year ended September 30,
2014 and 2013, the authority recorded $43,670 and $52,803, respectively, as retirement
contribution expense.

NOTE 7 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In October of 2004, the Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, a not-for-profit entity, to become a general partner in Renaissance Courts,
L.P. The Authority transferred low-income housing credits obtained from the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs to Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, who in turn, transferred them to Renaissance Courts, L.P. Renaissance
Courts, L.P. is a partnership formed to build and operate a 150 unit housing project in
Denton, Texas. An outside management group manages the housing project which
opened in the summer of 2006. In the event Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation is dissolved, any remaining assets, after all of the obligations of the
corporation are paid, will be transferred to the Authority. The Authority’s directors are
also the directors of the Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation. In 2014, the
Authority advanced funds to the project to facilitate refinancing debt on the project. The
advance is shown as due from related party on the statement of net position.

NOTE 8 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2014 and 2013 consists of the following:

2014 2013
Tenant receivables $ 2 % 2,367
Receivables due from other Housing Authorities 9,742 2,111
Receivables due from tenants from
fraudulent activity 20,459 6,348
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (24,070) (3,228)
Total $ 6,133 § 7,598

17



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 AND 2013

Note 9 — Inter-program Receivables and Payables

Inter-program balances at September 30, 2014 and 2013 consisted of the following
individual program receivables and payables:

2014 2013
Program Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
Housing Choice Voucher Program:
Business Activities $ - % 4630 $ - $ 91628
New Construction Program - 117 18,032 -
Senior Housing Program:
Business Activities - 82,764 - 94,149
New Construction Program:
Housing Choice Voucher Program 117 - - 18,032
Business Activities:
Housing Choice Voucher Program 4,630 - 91,628 -
Senior Housing Program 82,764 - 94,149 -
Total 3 87,511 $ 87,511 § 203,809 $ 203,809

These accounts were eliminated in the preparation of the general-purpose financial
statements.

Note 10 — Special Item

The Authority was a majority owner in Denton Housing Partners’, Inc. the general
partner to the Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. which owned and operated a
twenty-four (24) unit low income housing facility for tenants meeting certain income
qualifications and are at least sixty-three (63) years of age.

Effective December 20, 2012, the limited partner transferred and assigned 100% of its
limited partner interest in the partnership to Denton Public Facility Corporation (DPFC).
DPFC agreed to accept the transfer and assignment and to release the limited partner
from certain of its obligations. DPFC is a public facility corporation and instrumentality of
the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas.

The Authority now accounts for the assets and liabilities in DPFC as its own as a
separate program.

18



FEDERAL AWARDS SECTION



Members: 902 NORTH LOCUST

AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF HANKINS, EASTUP, DEATON, P.0. BOX 877
Cf\i?gfﬁ%{f TONN & SEAY DENTON, TX 76202-0977

TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION TEL. {940) 387-8563
PUBLIC ACCOQUNTANTS FAX {540} 383-47405
o i CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the “Authority”) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated June 29, 2015.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of the audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Howkis, Euotp, Lo Tomm 4 g«ﬁ
C

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, P
Denton, Texas

June 29, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Housing Authority of the City of Denton,
Texas' major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014. Housing Authority of
the City of Denton, Texas’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Housing Authority of the
City of Denton, Texas' major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Housing
Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2014.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas' internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Ynkon, Eushop, lester Tomm ¢ S

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC
Denton, Texas

June 29, 2015
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

1. Summary of Auditors’ Results

a. Type of auditors’ report issued on the financial statements: Unmaodified.

b. Financial statements — internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: None

Federal Awards — internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

e. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal award programs:
Unmodified.

f. Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported under Section
.510(a)2-7 of OMB Circular A-133: No

g. Major programs include: Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program, CFDA number
14.871

h. Dollar threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs:
$332,476.

i. Low risk auditee: No

oo

2. Findings Related to the Financials Statements
None
3. Other Findings

None
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

FINDING/NONCOMPLIANCE

N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ Federal
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA Federal
PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program 14.871 $ 11,082,544
Total U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Development 11,082,544
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 11,082,544
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton,
Texas (“the Authority™), which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2015 and 2014,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas as of September 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ basic financial statements. The HUD Financial
Data Schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit QOrganizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The HUD Financial Data Schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the HUD Financial Data Schedule and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 24, 2016 on
our consideration of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting
and on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/L/C(Mhma'. E-aoi%ni D,ig(ﬁ}h‘Tmc( S—Q )
Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC u-?j
Denton, Texas

June 24, 2016



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

The following is an analysis of the financial performance of the Housing Authority of the City of
Denton, Texas (the “Authority”). It is intended to provide the reader with an overview of the
Authority’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015. The information
contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the Authority’s basic financial
statements.

Financial Highlights

The Authority’s total assets decreased from $6,989,951 to $6,259,781, a decrease of $730,170
or 10.4%.

The unrestricted net position balance is $2,012,275 at September 30, 2015. This represents a
decrease of $229,259, or 10.2% from the previous year. Unrestricted net position represents
the amount of available funds for future appropriations.

Operating revenues decreased from $12,762,871 to $10,973,856, a decrease of $1,789,015 or
14.0% primarily due to the decrease in the Section 8 Voucher funding.

Operating expenses increased by $33,585 to $11,840,527 for the current year. The increase
was primarily due to increased maintenance costs.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of basic financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a narrative of the Authority’s financial
performance and activities for the year ended September 30, 2015. The basic statements
provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances. The notes provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial
statements.



The basic financial statements consist of three statements:

1. The Statement of Net Position provides information on all the Authority’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial situation
of the Authority is improving.

2. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Certain revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement that will result in cash flows in future periods.

3. The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing how the Authority's cash
changed during the most recent fiscal year. It shows the sources and uses of cash.

The Authority’'s housing programs include the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Management
Program, and DHAP. The Housing Choice Voucher Program provides rental assistance to aid
low income families to afford decent, safe and sanitary rental housing. The Authority provides
rental assistance in the form of a Housing Assistance Payment to a landlord on behalf of the
tenant. The DHAP program ended, however, the Authority still holds funds totaling $81,827
related to that program that are currently restricted. The Authority currently has 1,526 baseline
units available. Funds are provided by HUD to provide rental assistance payments. The
Authority is provided an administrative fee for the purpose of covering the administrative costs
of the program. The fee is preset by HUD on an annual basis. The Authority administers a
management fund designed to perform asset management responsibilities for additional
properties. Payment for the Authority’s administrative office and other rental properties support
the Management Program.

The Authority organized the Denton Public Facility Corporation (DPFC) in December 2012 to
receive and operate a twenty-four unit low-income housing facility. The Authority owned a
portion of the general partner of Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. which held the
facility. After the fifteen-year compliance period related to tax credits expired, the limited partner
transferred the entire interest in the facility to DPFC. The Authority must operate the facility
under the supervision of the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for an
additional fifteen years.

Renaissance Courts is a multi-family project that received a tax credits award from Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs for the development of a 150 unit town-home
style, affordable housing project. The development provides for mixed income and market rate
rents. The Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation to serve as the
general partner of Renaissance Courts, L.P. a limited partnership to fund and operate the
project. Funding comes from the limited partners purchasing the tax credits and a HUD insured
221 (d)4 mortgage. Operation of Renaissance Courts is managed by an outside management
group and funded from rental revenues. The Authority received a developer fee this fiscal year
and is still to receive additional deferred developer fees in the future, based on the project’s
cash flow.



Authority Activities & Highlights

The Authority’s overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized
below based on the information in the current and prior financial statements. The table below
lists the asset and liability comparisons for the years ended September 30, 2015 and
September 30, 2014.

Statement of Net Position

Change
Category FYE 2015 FYE 2014 %

Current Assets — Unrestricted $ 1,037,382 |$ 2,150,768 -9.9%
Current Assets - Restricted 257,421 1,035,522 -75.1%
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 3,851,376 3,590,058 7.3%
Other Non-Current Assets 213,603 213,603 0.0%
Total Assets 6,259,782 6,989,951 -10.4%
Current Liabilities 109,355 99,895 9.5%
Non-Current Liabilities 29,356 22,942 28.0%
Total Liabilities 138,711 122,837 12.9%
Unrestricted 2,012,275 2,241,534 -10.2%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,851,375 3,690,058 7.3%
Restricted 257,421 1,035,522 -75.1%
Total Net Position $ 6,121,071 |$ 6,867,114 -10.9%

Assels

The decrease in current assets-unrestricted was due to a decrease in cash as a resuit of lower
administrative fee income. The decrease in current assets-restricted, is due the Authority
receiving less funds from HUD than it expended for tenant rents. The increase in capital assets
was due to technology purchases and major renovations at Heritage Oaks Apartments. Other
non-current assets is a receivable from a related housing development. The Authority
advanced funds to refinance existing debt on the development.

Liabilities

Current liabilities increased primarily due to an increase in accounts payable and accrued
compensated absences.

Net Position

The Authority’s unrestricted net position decreased slightly as the Authority spent unrestricted
cash on fixed assets. The net investment in capital assets increased due to major renovations
at Heritage Oaks. Restricted net position decreased due to a decrease in housing assistance
funding from HUD.



Statement of Revenues & Expenses

Change
Category FYE 2015 FYE 2014 %

HUD Operating Grants $ 9,931,026 |$ 11,082,544 -10.4%
Tenant Revenue 770,371 687,096 12.1%
Interest income 1,703 2,263 -24 7%
Other Revenue 391,384 993,231 -60.6%

Total Revenue 11,094,484 12,765,134 -13.1%
Administration 1,118,295 1,181,798 -5.4%
Tenant Services 5,144 5,661 -9.1%
Utilities 107,162 100,673 6.4%!
Ordinary Maintenance 467,062 372,318 25.4%
General Expense 26,181 57,942 -54.8%
Depreciation 239,676 221,126 8.4%
Housing Assistance Payments 9,877,007 9,867,424 0.1%
Loss on disposition of asset - 2,029 -100.0%

Total Expenses $ 11,840,527 % 11,808,971 0.3%

Results of Operations
Revenues

Operating revenues of the Authority are generated principally from dwelling rents, Section 8
Administrative fees, HUD grants, and rental assistance payments. The Authority’'s revenues
decreased by $1,670,650. The primary reason for the decrease in revenue was a decrease in
Section 8 voucher funding, decreased payments from other housing authorities and less
insurance proceeds from storm damages, partially offset by an increase in tenant revenue.
Tenant revenue increased due to an improved lease out percentage at Heritage Oaks. Interest
income decreased due to decreasing interest rates paid by banks. The decrease in other
revenue is due to decreased payments received from other housing authorities with clients living
in the Authority’s boundaries and a decrease in insurance payments due to prior year storms.

Expenses

Total expenses increased by $31,556 over the prior year. Administrative expenses decreased
due to broad cost cutting across several areas including salaries, legal, postage and others.
Utilities increased as North Texas had a warmer summer than the previous year. Ordinary
maintenance increased due to additional maintenance issues with Heritage Oaks. The
decrease in general expense was due to a decrease in bad debt. The increase in depreciation
expense was due to technology purchases and renovations at Heritage Oaks. Housing
assistance payments barely changed as the Authority continued working on keeping their
vouchers utilized.



Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2015, the Authority’s investment in capital assets was $ 3,851,375. This
investment includes land, building, building improvements, office equipment, and maintenance
equipment. The increase in capital assets is the result of technology purchases and
renovations at Heritage Oaks.

Change
Category FYE 2015 FYE 2014 %

Land $ 1,203,916] $ 1,203,916 0.0%
Buildings and improvements 8,167,699 7,694,337 6.2%
Equipment 348,378 329,863 5.6%
Construction in progress 9,116 - 1100.0%
Accumulated Depreciation (5,877,734) (5,638,058) 4.3%
Total Net Fixed Assets $ 3,851,375] $ 3,590,058 7.3%

Future Economic Factors

The Authority will continue to use excess HAP funds and HUD held reserves to cover funding
shortfalls from HUD. The Authority will continue to receive developer fee revenues from
Renaissance Courts and income from commercial buildings. The Authority has formed Denton
Public Facility Corporation to develop 322 multi-family units of affordable housing using tax
credits and tax-exempt bonds. The Authority expects to earn developer and management fees
and bond issuance fees from this development. The Authority will work with developers to
construct more affordable housing to earn additional developer fee revenues. The Authority
also plans to sell vacant land that cannot be used for affordable housing development and use
those funds for operational and development purposes.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s accountability
for all those interested. If you should have additional questions regarding the financial
information, contact the Executive Director at Denton Housing Authority, 1225 Wilson Street,
Denton, TX 76205.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted
Accounts receivable - net
Accounts receivable - HUD
Investments
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Due from related party - net
Capital assets
Land
Building and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Total Capital assets

Total Non-Current Assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Security deposits payable
Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences - non-current

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

2015 2014
1,465,866 1,720,687
257,421 1,035,522
5,809 6,133
66,270 24,007
380,234 379,450
19,203 20,491
2,194,803 3,186,290
213,603 213,603
1,203,916 1,203,916
8,167,700 7,694,337
348,378 329,863
9,116 -
(5,877,734) (5,638,058)
3,851,376 3,590,058
4,064,979 3,803,661
6,259,782 6,989,951
33,478 27,763
50,377 50,082
25,500 22,050
109,355 99,895
29,356 22,942
3,851,376 3,590,058
257,421 1,035,522
2,012,274 2,241,534
6,121,071 6,867,114




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Operating Revenue:
Tenant revenue $ 770,371 687,096
Federal housing grants 9,931,026 11,082,544
Management income and other operating revenue 272,459 993,231
Total Operating Revenues 10,973,856 12,762,871
Operating Expenses:
Administration 1,118,295 1,181,798
Housing assistance payments 9,877,007 9,867,424
Tenant services 5,144 5,661
Utilities 107,162 100,673
Maintenance 467,062 372,318
Insurance 26,066 26,346
Bad debt expense 115 31,596
Depreciation 239,676 221,126
Total Operating Expenses 11,840,527 11,806,942
Operating Income (Loss) (866,671) 955,929
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 1,703 2,263
Insurance proceeds 118,925 -
Gain/(loss) on disposition of asset - (2,029)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 120,628 234
Change in net position (746,043) 956,163
Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,867,114 5,910,951
Net Position, End of Year $ 6,121,071 6,867,114

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from HUD

Cash received from tenants and other housing authorities

Cash received from other sources
Cash payments for rent and utility assistance

Cash payments for administrative and operating expenses

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments
Cash from special item
Acquisition of capital assets
Sale (Purchase) of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash advanced to related party

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year (includes restricted cash of $257,421
and $1,035,522 at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

10

2015 2014
9,888,763 $ 11,027,103
1,013,328 1,217,797

33,276 435,848
(9,877,048) (9,867,424)
(1,710,091) (1,722,630)

(651,772) 1,090,694
1,703 2,263
118,925 -
(500,994) (207,385)
(784) (902)
(381,150) (206,024)
- (213,603)
- (213,603)

(1,032,922) 671,067
2,756,209 2,085,142
1723287 $ 2,756,209




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Net operating income (loss) $ (866,671) 3 955,929
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation 239,676 221,126
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-net 324 1,465
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-HUD (42,263) (24,007)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses 1,288 (16,633)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 5,715 (20,992)
increase (decrease) in accounts payable - HUD - (31,434)
Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries payable 6,709 1,790
Increase (decrease) in security deposits payable 3,450 3,450

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (651,772) $ 1,090,694

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the "Authority") is a governmental
entity with the purpose of providing low income families with reasonable assistance for
housing, giving consideration and care for their well-being, and promoting family self-
sufficiency to all families without discrimination. The Authority primarily serves the
residents of Denton County, Texas. The Authority's primary funding source is the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development under the Section 8 Rental Voucher
Program.

Basis of Presentation

The activities of the Authority are similar to those of proprietary funds of local cities and
therefore are reported as an enterprise fund in accordance with governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Accordingly, transactions are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Under Alternative 1 of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority has elected to apply all standards issued on
or before November 30, 1989, by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), in
addition to all GASB standards.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The Authority records capital assets at cost and provides for depreciation using the
straight-line method over the respective estimated useful lives. Furniture and equipment
are depreciated over five years. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over thirty
to forty years. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is charged to operating
expenses as incurred.

income Taxes

The Authority is not subject to income taxes.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents — restricted represents excess HAP and
DHAP funds. See Restricted Net Position.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Net Position

The Authority receives payments from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") in monthly installments as determined at the beginning of the year
based on anticipated needs. At the end of the year, HUD determines how much of the
advanced funds were earned by the Authority. Differences in the amounts advanced
and the amount earned create excess HAP funds. The Authority must calculate the
excess HAP funds, but keeps the excess funds to use towards any funding shortages in
future periods. The funds may only be used in connection with the rental voucher
program. The Authority calculated the excess funding of $257,421 and $1,035,522 as of
September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, which it shows as restricted net position in
the statement of net position and as cash and cash equivalents — restricted.

The balances of the restricted net position accounts for voucher programs are as
follows:

2015 2014
Excess HAP — Section 8 Voucher $ 175,594 $ 953,695
Excess HAP - DHAP 81,827 81,827
Total restricted assets — voucher
programs $ 257,421 $ 1,035522

See also Note 3.

Compensated Absences

Regular, full-time employees receive compensation for vacations, holidays, iliness, and
certain other qualifying absences. Compensated absences, which have been earned
but not paid, have been accrued in the accompanying basic financial statements. For all
compensated absences, the liability is valued using pay rates in effect at the end of the
Authority’s fiscal year.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future fiscal periods are
recorded as prepaid expenses.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Authority values cash, cash equivalents, investments, receivables and current
liabilities at their carrying amounts reported in the financial statements due to the short
maturities of those instruments.

Date of Management's Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2016, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 — REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority, for financial purposes, includes all of the accounts relevant to the
operations of the Authority. The financial statements presented herein do not include
agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct
units of government apart from the Authority. The Authority is governed by a five
member Board of Commissioners, who are appointed by the City of Denton, Texas City
Council.

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Deposits, including those in restricted assets, are defined as cash or cash equivalents
on deposit with financial institutions. At September 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the
Authority’s deposits was $1,723,287 and the bank balance was $1,743,348. The bank
deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’'s name. At September 30, 2015, all of the Authority’s deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities. At September 30, 2014, the carrying amount
of the Authority’s deposits was $2,756,209 and the bank balance was $2,765,115. The
bank deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’'s name. At September 30, 2014, all of the Authority’s deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at September 30:

2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents — unrestricted 3 1,465,866 § 1,720,687
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 257,421 1,035,522
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 1,723,287 $ 2,756,209

Investments

The Authority’s investments consist of bank certificates of deposit. The certificates of
deposit total $380,234 and $379,450 at September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The certificates of deposit are insured up to $250,000 per financial institution.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk, for deposits and investments that are certificates of deposits, is the
risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. As
of September 30, 2015 and 2014, the Authority’s deposits were either collateralized or
covered by FDIC insurance. For sixteen days during the fiscal year ended September
30, 2015 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged collateral. The largest amount
exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged collateral was $881,868. For sixteen days
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral. The largest amount exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged
collateral was $799,682.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an instrument. The Authority’s investments were in certificates of deposits with
maturities no longer than two years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparts to an investment in debt
securities will not fulfill its obligation. The Authority’'s deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage sixteen days during the
years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the
Authority’s investment in a single issuer. The Authority's deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage sixteen days during the
years ended September 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 4 - Capital Asset Activity

Capital asset activity for the Authority for the year ended September 30, 2015, was as

follows:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress
Total assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

Balance Retirement/ Balance

Oct. 1 Additions Adjustment Sept. 30
1,203,916 $ - 3 - 1,203,916
9,116 - 9116
1,203,916 9,116 - 1,213,032
7,694,337 473,363 - 8,167,700
329,863 18,515 - 348,378
8,024,200 491,878 - 8,516,078
(5,391,063) (203,752) - (5,594,815)
(246,995) (35,924) - (282,919)
(5,638,058) (239,676) - (5,877,734)
2,386,142 252,202 - 2,638,344
3,590,058 $ 261,318 $ - 3,851,376

NOTE 5 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Authority

manages its risk of these types of losses through the purchase of commercial insurance.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year, nor
have there been settlements in excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three

fiscal years.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

NOTE 6 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority maintains an employee retirement plan for all full-time employees after 90
days of employment. The plan is a defined contribution plan. The Authority contributes
7% of eligible employees' compensation, and employees may make voluntary
contributions of up to 10% of their compensation. For the year ended September 30,
2015 and 2014, the authority recorded $36,513 and $43,670, respectively, as retirement
contribution expense.

NOTE 7 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In October of 2004, the Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, a not-for-profit entity, to become a general partner in Renaissance Courts,
L.P. The Authority transferred low-income housing credits obtained from the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs to Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, who in turn, transferred them to Renaissance Courts, L.P. Renaissance
Courts, L.P. is a partnership formed to build and operate a 150 unit housing project in
Denton, Texas. An outside management group manages the housing project which
opened in the summer of 2006. In the event Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation is dissolved, any remaining assets, after all of the obligations of the
corporation are paid, will be transferred to the Authority. The Authority’s directors are
also the directors of the Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation. In 2014, the
Authority advanced funds to the project to facilitate refinancing debt on the project. The
advance totaled 213,603 and is shown as due from related party on the statement of net
position.

NOTE 8 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2015 and 2014 consists of the following:

2015 2014
Tenant receivables $ 1,331 % 2
Receivables due from other Housing Authorities 9,043 9,742
Receivables due from tenants from
fraudulent activity 16,674 20,459
Other receivables 2,946 -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (24,185) (24,070)
Total $ 5809 % 6,133
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015 AND 2014

Note 9 — Inter-program Receivables and Payables

Inter-program balances at September 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following
individual program receivables and payables:

Program
Housing Choice Voucher Program:

Business Activities
New Construction Program
Senior Housing Program
Senior Housing Program:
Business Activities
Housing Choice Voucher Program
New Construction Program:
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Business Activities:
Housing Choice Voucher Program
Senior Housing Program

2015 2014
Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
$ -3 6,013 § -9 4,630
3,442 - - 117
504 - - -
- 35,698 - 82,764
- 504 - -
- 3,442 117 -
6,013 - 4,630 -
35,698 - 82,764 -
$ 45657 $ 45657 ¢ 87,511 $ 87,511

These accounts were eliminated in the preparation of the general-purpose financial

statements.

Note 10 — Special ltem

The Authority was a majority owner in Denton Housing Partners, Inc. the general partner
to the Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. which owned and operated a twenty-
four (24) unit low income housing facility for tenants meeting certain income
qualifications and are at least sixty-three (63) years of age.

Effective December 20, 2012, the limited partner transferred and assigned 100% of its
limited partner interest in the partnership to Denton Public Facility Corporation (DPFC).
DPFC agreed to accept the transfer and assignment and to release the limited partner
from certain of its obligations. DPFC is a public facility corporation and instrumentality of
the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas.

The Authority now accounts for the assets and liabilities in DPFC as its own as a

separate program.
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AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF HANKINS, EASTUP, DEATON, P.0. BOX 977
CERTIFIED PUBLIC DENTON, TX 76202-0977
ACCOUNTANTS TONN & SEAY TEL. {940) 387-8563
TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION FA)é (940) 383-4746
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the “Authority”) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated June 24, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of the audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

I%mkvm, EC@W¥ Deqben Tonm 4 ﬁéw/\
Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC
Denton, Texas

June 24, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Housing Authority of the City of Denton,
Texas’ major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015. Housing Authority of
the City of Denton, Texas’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, reguiations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Housing Authority of the
City of Denton, Texas’ major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
about Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each

major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Housing
Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2015.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas' internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

ol Eaotuup. Deatom Tomm 5@«2(
Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC
Denton, Texas

June 24, 2016
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

1. Summary of Auditors’ Results

a. Type of auditors’ report issued on the financial statements: Unmodified.

b. Financial statements — internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: None

Federal Awards — internal control over major programs:

Material weakness (es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

e. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal award programs:
Unmodified.

f. Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported under Section
.510(a)2-7 of OMB Circular A-133: No

g. Major programs include: Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program, CFDA number
14.871

h. Dollar threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs:
$300,000.

i. Low risk auditee: Yes

oo

2. Findings Related to the Financials Statements
None
3. Other Findings

None
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

FINDING/NONCOMPLIANCE

N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

FEDERAL GRANTORY/ Federal
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA Federal
PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program 14.871 $ 9,931,026
Total U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Development 9,931,026
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 9,931,026
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton,
Texas (“the Authority”), which comprise the statements of net position as of September 30, 2016 and 2015,
and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. This includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements: based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas as of September 30, 2016 and 2015, and the
changes in its net position and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.




Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 7 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas' basic financial statements. The HUD Financial
Data Schedule is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Office of the
Inspector General, and is not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 27, 2017 on
our consideration of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ internal control over financial reporting
and on our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Audilting Standards in considering Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Hm’“k‘:“" Eoolp DodonaTorun ¢ e

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, PC M‘ZY
Denton, Texas

June 27, 2017




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

The following is an analysis of the financial performance of the Housing Authority of the City of
Denton, Texas (the “Authority”). It is intended to provide the reader with an overview of the
Authority’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016. The information
contained in this MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the Authority's basic financial
statements.

Financial Highlights

The Authority’s total assets increased from $6,259,782 to $8,847,179, an increase of
$2,587,397 or 41.3%.

The unrestricted net position balance is $2,631,712 at September 30, 2016. This represents an
increase of $619,438, or 30.1% from the previous year. Unrestricted net position represents the
amount of available funds for future appropriations.

Operating revenues increased from $10,973,856 to $13,722,122, an increase of $2,748,266 or
25.0% primarily due to the increase in the Section 8 Voucher funding.

Operating expenses increased by $1,691,260 to $13,531,787 for the current year. The increase
was primarily due to increased housing assistance payments.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of basic financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
Management’s Discussion and Analysis provides a. narrative of the Authority’s financial
performance and activities for the year ended September 30, 2016. The basic statements
provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority's finances. The notes provide additional
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic financial
statements.




The basic financial statements consist of three statements:

1. The Statement of Net Position provides information on all of the Authority’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial situation
of the Authority is improving.

2. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents information
showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Certain revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement that will result in cash flows in future periods.

3. The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing how the Authority’s cash
changed during the most recent fiscal year. It shows the sources and uses of cash.

The Authority's housing programs include the Housing Choice Voucher Program, Management
Program, and DHAP. The Housing Choice Voucher Program provides rental assistance to aid
low income families to afford decent, safe and sanitary rental housing. The Authority provides
rental assistance in the form of a Housing Assistance Payment to a landlord on behalf of the
tenant. The DHAP program ended, however, the Authority still holds funds totaling $81,827
related to that program that are currently restricted. The Authority currently has 1,526 baseline
units available. Funds are provided by HUD to provide rental assistance payments. The
Authority is provided an administrative fee for the purpose of covering the administrative costs
of the program. The fee is preset by HUD on an annual basis. The Authority administers a
management fund designed to perform asset management responsibilities for additional
properties. Payment for the Authority’s administrative office and other rental properties support
the Management Program.

The Authority organized the Denton Public Facility Corporation (DPFC) in December 2012 to
receive and operate a twenty-four unit low-income housing facility. The Authority owned a
portion of the general partner of Denton Senior Housing Development, L.P. which held the
facility. After the fifteen-year compliance period related to tax credits expired, the limited partner
transferred the entire interest in the facility to DPFC. The Authority must operate the facility
under the supervision of the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs for an
additional fifteen years.

Renaissance Courts is a multi-family project that received a tax credits award from Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs for the development of a 150 unit town-home
style, affordable housing project. The development provides for mixed income and market rate
rents. The Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation to serve as the
general partner of Renaissance Courts, L.P. a limited partnership to fund and operate the
project. Funding comes from the limited partners purchasing the tax credits and a HUD insured
221 (d)4 mortgage. Operation of Renaissance Courts is managed by an outside management
group and funded from rental revenues. The Authority received a developer fee this fiscal year
and is still to receive additional deferred developer fees in the future, based on the project’s
cash flow.




Authority Activities & Highlights

The Authority’s overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized
below based on the information in the current and prior financial statements. The table below
lists the asset and liability comparisons for the years ended September 30, 2016 and
- September 30, 2015.

Statement of Net Position

Change
Category FYE 2016 FYE 2015 %

Current Assets — Unrestricted $ 2,416,517 |$ 1,937,382 24.7%
Current Assets - Restricted 105,773 267,421 -58.9%
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 5,961,286 3,851,376 54.8%
Other Non-Current Assets 363,603 213,603 70.2%
Total Assets 8,847,179 6,259,782 41.3%
Current Liabilities 127,779 109,355 16.9%
Non-Current Liabilities 2,454,245 29,356 8260.0%)
Total Liabilities 2,682,024 - 138,711 1761.4%
Unrestricted 2,631,712 2,012,275 30.8%
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,627,670 3,851,375 -8.4%
Restricted 105,773 257,421 -58.9%
Total Net Position $ 6,265,155 |$ 6,121,071 2.4%

Assels

The increase in current assets-unrestricted was due to an increase in cash as a result of higher
tenant revenue, management income and other operating income. The decrease in current
assets-restricted, is due the Authority receiving less funds from HUD than it expended for tenant
rents. The increase in capital assets was due to the addition of land in connection with a land
lease on a development project. Other non-current assets include a receivable from a related
housing development and a note receivable from the sale of a tract of land. The Authority
advanced funds to refinance existing debt on the development.

Liabilities
Current and non-current liabilities increased due to deferred revenue in connection with the land
lease from a new development project.

Net Position

The Authority’s unrestricted net position increased due to an increase of operating income. The
net investment in capital assets decreased due to depreciation expense being higher than
purchases of capital assets. The deferred revenue liability associated with the ground lease
and offset the increase in land. Restricted net position decreased due to a decrease in housing
assistance funding from HUD.




Statement of Revenues & Expenses

Change
Category FYE 2016 FYE 2015 %

HUD Operating Grants $ 11,880,094 | $ 9,931,026 19.6%
Tenant Revenue 868,582 770,371 12.8%
Interest Income 2,475 1,703 45,3%
Other Revenue 975,676 391,384 149.3%

Total Revenue 13,726,827 11,094,484 . 23.7%
Administration 1,429,304 1,118,295 27.8%
Tenant Services 6,356 5,144 23.6%
Utilities 102,253 107,162 -4.6%
Ordinary Maintenance 455,977 467,062 -2.4%
General Expense 59,300 26,181 126.5%
Depreciation 252,646 | 239,676 5.4%
Housing Assistance Payments 11,225,951 9,877,007 13.7%
Loss on disposition of asset 50,956 - 100.0%

Total Expenses $ 13,682,743 % 11,840,527 14.7%

Results of Operations
Revenues

Operating revenues of the Authority are generated principally from dwelling rents, Section 8
Administrative fees, HUD grants, and rental assistance payments. The Authority’s revenues
increased by $2,581,387. The primary reason for the increase in revenue was an increase in
Section 8 voucher funding and an increase in tenant revenue. Tenant revenue increased due
to an improved lease out percentage at Heritage Oaks. Interest income increased due to
increasing interest rates paid by banks. The increase in other revenue is due to increased
payments received from other housing authorities with clients living in the Authority’s boundaries
and an increase in developer fees on housing projects.

Expenses

Total expenses increased by $1,742,216 over the prior year. Administrative expenses
increased due to increases in salaries and payroll related expenses as well as some office
expenses. Utilities decreased slightly as North Texas had a milder summer than the previous
year. Ordinary maintenance decreased slightly due to fewer maintenance issues with Heritage
Oaks. The increase in general expense was due to an increase in bad debt. The increase in
depreciation expense was due to building improvements and a vehicle and A/C units at Heritage
Oaks. Housing assistance payments increased significantly as the Authority made good
progress on keeping their vouchers utilized.




Capital Assets

As of September 30, 2016, the Authority’s investment in capital assets was $ 5,961,286. This
investment includes land, building, building improvements, office equipment, and maintenance

equipment.  The increase in land is due to a ground lease agreement with a developer
connected with an apartment project.

Change
Category FYE 2016 FYE 2015 %

Land $ 3,472,960! $ 1,203,916 | 188.5%
Buildings and improvements 8,245,896 8,167,699 1.0%
Equipment 353,249 348,378 1.4%
Construction in progress 781 9,116 | -91.4%
Accumulated Depreciation (6,111,600) (5,877,734)] 4.0%
Total Net Fixed Assets $ 5,961,286| $ 3,851,375 | 54.8%

Future Economic Factors

The Authority will continue to receive developer fee revenues from Renaissance Courts and
income from commercial buildings. The Authority has formed Denton Public Facility
Corporation to develop 322 muilti-family units of affordable housing using tax credits and tax-
exempt bonds. The Authority expects to earn developer and management fees and bond
issuance fees from this development. The Authority will work with developers to construct more
affordable housing to earn additional developer fee revenues. The Authority also plans to sell
vacant land that cannot be used for affordable housing development and use those funds for
operational and development purposes.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's accountability
for all those interested. If you should have additional questions regarding the financial
information, contact the Executive Director at Denton Housing Authority, 1225 Wilson Street,
Denton, TX 76205.




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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ASSETS
2016 2015
Current Assets: :
Cash and cash equivalents 2,052,884 $ 1,465,866
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 105,773 257,421
Accounts receivable - net 16,493 5,809
Accounts receivable - HUD - 66,270
Investments 327,360 380,234
Prepaid expenses 19,780 19,203
Total Current Assets 2,622,290 2,194,803
Non-Current Assets:
Due from related party - net 213,603 213,603
Note receivable 150,000 -
Capital assets
Land 3,472,960 1,203,916
Building and improvements 8,245,896 8,167,700
Fumniture and equipment 363,249 348,378
Construction in progress 781 9,116
Accumulated depreciation (6,111,600) (5,877,734)
Total Capital assets 5,961,286 3,851,376
Total Non-Current Assets 6,324,889 4,064,979
Total Assets 8,847,179 6,259,782
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 47,667 33,478
Accounts payable - HUD 1,469 -
Accrued salaries payable - current 28,394 50,377
Deferred Revenue-current 24,949 -
Security deposits payable 25,300 25,500
Total Current Liabilities 127,779 109,355
Long-Term Liabilities:
Accrued salaries payable - non current 20,629 29,356
Deferred Revenue-non current 2,433,616 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities 2,454,245 29,356
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 3,627,670 3,851,376
Restricted 105,773 257,421
Unrestricted 2,631,712 2,012,274
Total Net Position 6,265,155 $ 6,121,071




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Operating Revenue:
Tenant revenue $ 868,582 $ 770,371
Federal housing grants 11,880,094 9,931,026
Management income and other operating revenue 973,446 272,459
Total Operating Revenues 18,722,122 10,973,856
Operating Expenses:
Administration 1,429,304 1,118,295
Housing assistance payments 11,225,951 9,877,007
Tenant services 6,356 5,144
Utilities 102,253 107,162
Maintenance 455,977 467,062
Insurance 28,814 26,066
Bad debt expense 30,486 115
Depreciation 252,646 239,676
Total Operating Expenses 13,531,787 11,840,527
Operating Income (Loss) 190,335 (866,671)
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest income 2,475 1,703
Insurance proceeds 2,230 118,925
Gain/(loss) on disposition of asset (50,956) -
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (46,251) 120,628
Change in net position 144,084 (746,043)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 6,121,071 6,867,114
Net Position, End of Year $ 6,265,155 $ 6,121,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

9




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from HUD $ 11,947833 % 9,888,763
Cash received from tenants and other housing authorities 1,367,862 1,013,328
Cash received from other sources 463,282 33,276
Cash payments for rent and utility assistance (11,226,834) (9,877,048)
Cash payments for administrative and operating expenses (2,069,405) (1,710,091)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 482,738 (651,772)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest on investments 2,475 1,703
Cash from special item 2,230 118,925
Acquisition of capital assets (104,947) (500,994)
Sale (Purchase) of investments 52,874 (784)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (47,368) (381,150)
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities - -
Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities - -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 435,370 (1,032,922)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,723,287 2,756,209
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year (includes restricted cash of $105,773
and $257,421 at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively) 3 2,158,657 % 1,723,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Net operating income (loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-net

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable-HUD

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable - HUD

Increase (decrease) in accrued salaries payable

Increase (decrease) in security deposits payable

Net Cash Provided (used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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2016 2015
190,335 $  (866,671)
252,646 239,676
(10,684) 324
66,270 (42,263)
(577) 1,288
14,189 5,715

1,469 -

(30,710) 6,709
(200) 3,450
482,738 $ (651,772




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the "Authority") is a governmental
entity with the purpose of providing low income families with reasonable assistance for
housing, giving consideration and care for their well-being, and promoting family self-
sufficiency to all families without discrimination. The Authority primarily serves the
residents of Denton County, Texas. The Authority's primary funding source is the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development under the Section 8 Rental Voucher
Program.

Basis of Presentation

The activities of the Authority are similar to those of proprietary funds of local cities and
therefore are reported as an enterprise fund in accordance with governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles issued by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Accordingly, transactions are accounted for using the accrual
basis of accounting. Under Alternative 1 of GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the Authority has elected to apply all standards issued on
or before November 30, 1989, by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), in
addition to all GASB standards.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

The Authority records capital assets at cost and provides for depreciation using the
straight-line method over the respective estimated useful lives. Furniture and equipment
are depreciated over five years. Buildings and improvements are depreciated over thirty
to forty years. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs is charged to operating
expenses as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Authority is not subject to income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three
months or less. Cash and cash equivalents — restricted represents excess HAP and
DHAP funds. See Restricted Net Position.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Restricted Net Position

The Authority receives payments from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD") in monthly installments as determined at the beginning of the year
based on anticipated needs. At the end of the year, HUD determines how much of the
advanced funds were earned by the Authority. Differences in the amounts advanced
and the amount earned create excess HAP funds. The Authority must calculate the
excess HAP funds, but keeps the excess funds to use towards any funding shortages in
future periods. The funds may only be used in connection with the rental voucher
program. The Authority calculated the excess funding of $105,773 and $257,421 as of
September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, which it shows as restricted net position in
the statement of net position and as cash and cash equivalents — restricted.

The balances of the restricted net position accounts for voucher programs are as
follows:

2016 2015
Excess HAP ~ Section 8 Voucher $ 23,946 $ 175,594
Excess HAP — DHAP 81,827 81,827
Total restricted assets — voucher
programs - $ 105773 $ 257,421

See also Note 3.

Compensated Absences

Regular, full-time employees receive compensation for vacations, holidays, illness, and
certain other qualifying absences. Compensated absences, which have been earned
but not paid, have been accrued in the accompanying basic financial statements. For all
compensated absences, the liability is valued using pay rates in effect at the end of the
Authority’s fiscal year.

Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit future fiscal periods are
recorded as prepaid expenses.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Authority values cash, cash equivalents, investments, receivables and current
liabilities at their carrying amounts reported in the financial statements due to the short
maturities of those instruments.

Date of Management’s Review

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 27, 2017, the date on
which the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2 — REPORTING ENTITY

The Authority, for financial purposes, includes all of the accounts relevant to the
operations of the Authority. The financial statements presented herein do not include
agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or separate and distinct
units of government apart from the Authority. The Authority is governed by a five
member Board of Commissioners, who are appointed by the City of Denton, Texas, City
Council.

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Deposits, including those in restricted assets, are defined as cash or cash equivalents
on deposit with financial institutions. At September 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the
Authority’s deposits was $2,158,657 and the bank balance was $2,208,554. The bank
deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’s name. At September 30, 2016, all of the Authority's deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities. At September 30, 2015, the carrying amount
of the Authority’s deposits was $1,723,287 and the bank balance was $1,743,348. The
bank deposits were held with financial institutions and are required to be insured or
collateralized with securities held by banks in their trust departments, not in the
Authority’s name. At September 30, 2015, all of the Authority’s deposits were covered
by FDIC insurance or pledged securities.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at September 30:

2016 2015
Cash and cash equivalents — unrestricted $ 2,052,884 $ 1,465,866
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 105,773 257,421
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 2,158,657 $ 1,723,287

Investments

The Authority’s investments consist of bank certificates of deposit. The certificates of
deposit total $327,360 and $380,234 at September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The certificates of deposit are insured up to $250,000 per financial institution.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk, for deposits and investments that are certificates of deposits, is the
risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s deposits may not be returned. As
of September 30, 2016 and 2015, the Authority’s deposits were either collateralized or
covered by FDIC insurance. For eleven days during the fiscal year ended September
30, 2016 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged collateral. The largest amount
exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged collateral was $825,178. For sixteen days
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2015 deposits exceeded FDIC insurance
and pledged collateral. The largest amount exceeding FDIC insurance and pledged
collateral was $881,868.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an instrument. The Authority’s investments were in certificates of deposits with
maturities no longer than two years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparts to an investment in debt
securities will not fulfill its obligation. The Authority’s deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage eleven and sixteen days
during the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss atfributed to the magnitude of the
Authority’s investment in a single issuer. The Authority’'s deposits and investments
exceeded FDIC insurance and pledged securities coverage eleven and sixteen days
during the years ended September 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY QOF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 4 — Capital Asset Activity

Capital asset activity for the Authority for the year ended September 30, 2016, was as

follows:

Capital assets not being
depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress
Total assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets being
depreciated:

Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings and
improvements

Furniture and equipment
Total accumulated
depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

Balance Retirement/ Balance

Oct. 1 Additions Adjustment Sept. 30
1,203,916 $ 2,470,000 $ 200,956 $ 3,472,960
9,116 - 8,335 781
1,213,032 2,470,000 209,291 3,473,741
8,167,700 78,196 - 8,245,896
348,378 23,651 18,780 353,249
8,516,078 101,847 18,780 8,599,145
(5,594,815) (221,788) - (5,816,603)
(282,919) (30,858) 18,780 (294,997)
(5,877,734) (252,646) 18,780 (6,111,600)
2,638,344 (150,799) - 2,487 545
209,291 $ 5,961,286

NOTE 5 — RISK MANAGEMENT

$ 3,851,376 & 2319201 $

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to theft of, damage to, and

destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Authority

manages its risk of these types of losses through the purchase of commercial insurance.
There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year, nor
have there been settlements in excess of insurance coverage for any of the past three

fiscal years.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 6 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

The Authority maintains an employee retirement plan for all full-time employees after 90
days of employment. The plan is a defined contribution plan. The Authority contributes
7% of eligible employees' compensation, and employees may make voluntary
contributions of up to 10% of their compensation. For the year ended September 30,
2016 and 2015, the authority recorded $58,413 and $36,513, respectively, as retirement
contribution expense.

NOTE 7 — RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In October of 2004, the Authority formed Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, a not-for-profit entity, to become a general partner in Renaissance Courts,
L.P. The Authority transferred low-income housing credits obtained from the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs to Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation, who in turn, transferred them to Renaissance Courts, L.P. Renaissance
Courts, L.P. is a partnership formed to build and operate a 150 unit housing project in
Denton, Texas. An outside management group manages the housing project which
opened in the summer of 2006. In the event Renaissance Courts Public Facility
Corporation is dissolved, any remaining assets, after all of the obligations of the
corporation are paid, will be transferred to the Authority. The Authority’s directors are
also the directors of the Renaissance Courts Public Facility Corporation. In 2014, the
Authority advanced funds to the project to facilitate refinancing debt on the project. The
advance totaled $213,603 and is shown as due from related party on the statement of
net position.

NOTE 8 — ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2016 and 2015 consists of the following:

2016 2015

Tenant receivables $ 3,275 .$ 1,331
Receivables due from other Housing Authorities 44,080 9,043
Receivables due from tenants from _

fraudulent activity 4,168 16,674
Other receivables 3,600 2,946
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (38,630) (24,185)
Total $ 16,493 $ 5,809
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 AND 2015

Note 9 — Inter-program Receivables and Payables

Inter;program balances at September 30, 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following
individual program receivables and payables:

2016 2015
Program Receivable Payable Receivable Payable
Housing Choice Voucher Program:
Business Activities $ 2,794 % - $ - $ 6,013
New Construction Program 9,787 - 3,442 -
Senior Housing Program 690 - 504 -
Senior Housing Program:
Business Activities - 38,513 - 35,698
Housing Choice Voucher Program - 690 - 504
New Construction Program:
Housing Choice Voucher Program - 9,787 - 3,442
Business Activities:
Housing Choice Voucher Program - 2,794 6,013 -
Senior Housing Program 38,513 - 35,698 -
% 51,784 $ 51,784 $ 45657 $ 45657

These accounts were eliminated in the preparation of the general-purpose financial
statements. ‘

Note 10 — Note Receivable

The Authority sold a tract of land and took a note for $150,000. The note is to be paid
from the Authority leasing space in the building to be built on the land. The Authority will
reduce the note receivable each month for the value of rent expense associated with
using the building.

Note 11 — Special Item

The Authority wholly owns the Denton Public Facilities Corporation (“DFPC”). DPFC is a
public facility corporation and instrumentality of the Housing Authority of the City of
Denton, Texas.

DPFC entered into a memorandum of understanding with a developer form a partnership
to construct a 322 unit multi-family apartment development in Denton. DPFC is the
owner of the General Partner. At the end of the 15-year tax credit compliance period,
DPFC, or its designated affiliate, will have first right of refusal to purchase the property
for a price equal to the outstanding indebtedness secured by the project plus an exit
taxes.

DPFC received land valued at $2,470,000 in connection with a 99-year ground lease on

the project. The value of the lease is recorded as deferred revenue, and will be
amortized over the life of the lease.
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TEXAS SOCIETY OF CERTIFIED A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION TEL. (940) 387-8563

FAX (940) 383-4746
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas (the “Authority”) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated June 27, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

[n planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of the audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

%kl:o, Eoohp, Recdin. Toman 4 ge%«g
P

Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay,
Denton, Texas

June 27, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM
GUIDANCE

Board of Commissioners .
Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas
Denton, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2016. Housing Authority of the City of
Denton, Texas’ major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Housing Authority of the
City of Denton, Texas' major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and the audit requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Costs Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence about Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Housing
Authority of the City of Denton, Texas’ compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2016.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
considered Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas' internal control over compliance with
the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Housing Authority of the City
of Denton, Texas’ internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

HZM’W-, anw‘ Docdn., Torun & S_Quzg
Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay, P
Denton, Texas

June 27, 2017
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

1. Summary of Auditors’ Results

a. Type of auditors’ report issued on the financial statements: Unmaodified.

b. Financial statements — internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness (es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

Noncompliance which is material to the financial statements: None

Federal Awards — internal control over major programs:

Material weakness (es) identified: No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weakness:

No

e. Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major federal award programs:
Unmodified.

f.  Did the audit disclose findings which are required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR 200.561(a): No

g. Major programs include: Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program, CFDA number
14.871

h. Dollar threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs:
$750,000.

i. Low risk auditee: Yes

ao

2. Findings Related to the Financials Statements
None
3. Other Findings

None

23




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

N/A
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

FINDING/NONCOMPLIANCE

N/A

25




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ Federal
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/ CFDA Federal
PROGRAM OR CLUSTER TITLE Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Section 8 — Rental Voucher Program 14.871 $ 11,880,094

Total U.S. Department of Housing and

Urban Development 11,880,094
 Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 11,880,094
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF DENTON, TEXAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

NOTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Housing Authority of the City of Denton, Texas and is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements.

27




98%'6% 960°L$ 06£'8% SSlUOJUSAUl ¢f|
L6L'LLS 061$ 95¢% SY9°01$ sjessy JeyiQ pue sesuadxd pledaid zyl
Aljiger juaung Jo JuswAeq Joj pajouIsay - SJUSWISOAU] GEL
Po)oUISY - SJUSUISIAU| ZEL
09¢'/ze$ 865'10€$ ‘ oA T4 psjolisalun - sjusunsseAul gl
£01°052$ viZ'212$ 0% £66°L$ 006°0L$ SJUNO22Y |NAQNO(J 10} SSOUBMOIY JO 1SN 'SS|BAISOSY [E101 (CL
LLg LLS 9|qeAIBo9y 1Saloju] panIddyY 621
¥80°2$- ¥80'2%- pneld - sjunoddy [NIqnoQ 10j SOUEMO|lY |L'gZL
89LV$ 891'v$ Aisnooey pneld gzl
1ua1in) - sjqeAleosy sebelbuop ® ‘sueo ‘seloN /2L
$9Z°GES- 0$ ¥9Z'GES- 18Y1Q0 - SJUNOJJY [NAQNOQJ 10} SOUBMOIY C'9CL
78Z°1%- AR Sjueua] - SJUNOOJY [NQNO( 10} SOUBMOIY |'9C L
§lz'c$ s/z'es SJUBUS | - 8|qBAIS08Y SJUNODDY 97|
£0Z°L12$ £02°212$ SNOSUE[[92SI - 9|JBAIS29Y SIUN02JY GZ|
JUSWIUISACS) J8UJQ - S|qEeAI09y SIUN0IdY +7|
s108l01d J19Ul0 ANH - SI1qeAs29y SJUNoIdY ZZL
080'¥1$ 080'¥¥$ s199[01d VHd - S1qeAleday Sjunoody LZ|
159'851°2$ T96'G19% 128°18% 9€9°226% zeT'eess yseQ [ejol Q0L
- samIger] Jualny Jo Juswhed Joj pajoisay - ysed G|
00g'se$ 00£°62$ susodag Ajunoag Jueus| - ysed vl
€14°50L$ 128°'18% wr6'eT$ pspusay IsUylQ - ysed ¢l
0$ 0$ juswdoljeAs( pue UOHEZIUISPON - PBJOUISaY - USeD ZL1L
¥85°120°7$ 296'G1L9% 96£'206%$ 982'605% pspiisaaun -ysed LLL
{e10Kang sopAROY sseUisng || [e007/SNRS T popusld SISUINOA AU

- nun weuodwo) g9

BuisnoH 1/8¢1L

910¢/0€/60 :puU3 JesA [eosl

upny s|buig/psypny. :adA} uoissiwugng

Aewwng j99yg 9ouejeg apip Aiusg

XL ‘uojusQ

(z6eX1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uojueQq




0.1°'968°8$ 91L£'108'Z% £z8°18$ 150°02e'S$ 9./6°269% $90IN0STY JO MOINO pali9ye( pue SISSsY [B]o1 06¢

$S90IN0SAY JO MOIINO palaed 002

98Z'LLL'9$ 90.'629°'L$ 0$ Y.Ly'Z8ev$ 901°66$ $19SSY JUSLIN)-UCN [e]0] 08l

$8INJUa/\ JUIOr Ul SJUsWISaAUj 9/ |

sjossy RUYI0 Y.L

JUSLINY UON - S|JeAIo09Y Sjuels) ¢/

1Sed - JUsLIND) UON - 9]qeAIaoay sabebuop ® ‘sueo ‘seloN 2.1

000°051+$ 000°05+$ JuaLND-UON - 8jqeAje08y sebebuopy pue sueoT ‘seloN L/|

987°196'G$ 90L'6LY LS 0$ vLY'Z8E VS 901'66% uoneioaideq pajenWNodyY Jo 19N ‘siossy [elde) [elo] 091

ainjoniiselju} gol

18/$ 18/$ ssaibold uj uononisuon /9|

665 LLL9%- GZ6°'568%- €9Z'S16'VS- LLY00€S" uopepaide peje[nUNoOY 99|

sjuswienoidwj pioysses GOl

182°10¢$ 9.0'9e$ 0S1°2.$ 196°¢61L$ uoneqsiuwpy - Alsuiyoey g uswdinb3 ‘einjyuing 91

91168 Z91'19% sBuyjem - Alsuyoe % Juswdinb3 ‘ainpuing €9l

S68'GrZ'8$ Gz8'8z8’ LS PLL'LIZ'O$ 956'502% sbuiping z9l

096°CL1'E$ 6v6'606$ LL0'€96'ZS pueT L9l

¥88'v8LC$ LY LLLLS 128'18% L15'/¢6$ 0/8'€65%$ slessy jualny [ejol 061

S[eg 10l pleH s1essy Ghl

166'87$ 0z1'6e% LIZELS wol4 eng welboud J8luf i)

806%- OLLS- 86.%- SSLIOJUSAU| 818]0SqQ 10} @OUBMO|Y L EfL
1lo1ang SeliAROY sseulsng | [e00Y/03RIS 2 popueld SISUONOA SIIOUT

- un Wweuodwo) Z'9

BuisnoH 1/8'v1L

910¢2/0¢/60 ‘pu3 JesA [eosid

upny ojbuig/palipny :odA ] uoissIwgng

Atewing jsayg souejeg apip Anug

X1 ‘uojueq

(z6eXL) Auouyiny Buisnoy uojueg




sshjigel] G gSv4d

96¢

sung uop - Aljiger] ueo §Gg
629'07$ 125°1$ SvL'9% €9€°Z1$ JuBLNY UON - s90ussqy pajesuadwo) peniody $5¢
9L9°cet'cs olLg'eer'zs J8Ul0O - selljiqel] JuUsLnNo-UON €6¢
sBuimollog BunesadQ - Juaing Jo 1oN ‘1geq wisr-buot zge
abebuop/soelold [enden - Juaun) Jo 19N ‘1gag wusl-buo 1g¢
0LL'911$ 989°/L$ 0$ 858'2Z1$ 9zz'Les sefljigery jusung [ejo] QLe
juaung - Ayijiger] ueoT gye
L66'8V$ 166°'87$ 0] enq - weiboid | /¢
z96'LLS SE6°Z$ 120'6$ 18410 - seflliqelT peniody 9y¢
soljigerT Jualn) J8Yylo Sve
sBuimoulog Bunelado - 1geq wisl-buoT jo uood uslnd pie
[enden - 1geq wiel-6uoT Jo uomod ualny £ps
516'22% oty 9z$ 89Y°LS SNuUsASY psulesun Zye
00€'sz$ 00€'s2$ sysodeq AUnoag Jueus| Lye
JUSWILIBAOS) JBUIQ - 8|qeAed SJUNoddY £E8
spoloid YHd - olqefed unodoy zeg
swelbold YHd anH - aigefed sjunooody Lge
a|qeAed 1salaju] paniddy 6zg
ApgerT fousBunuoy peniody g
¥6£'82$ 86€°LS 1GL°2% SY86L$ UOILIOd JUBLIN - $80Ussqy pajesuadwon) peniody Zze
LzL'es LzL'es s|qefed sexe] |l0ifed/ebepn peniooy 1zZg
an( 1sed sAe( 06< dlgeied SIUNoOdY €1¢
-180°LES £GECL$ £V6°01$ 162'9% sAe( 06 => ojqefed sjunoooy Zig
yelplonQgyued LLE

{ej03ang sommY ssauisng || 1200 eieIS pepuslg SIBUANOA SA1OUD

-1un wesuodwon zZ'9

BuisnoH L/8°%1

910¢/0€/60 :pu3 JesA [eosid

upny ejbuig/peppny :edA | uoissiwgng

Arewwing jesys 9ouejeg spipm Aug

X1 ‘uoueqg

(z6eXL) Awoyny Buisnoy uojueq




0/1°968'8$ 91€£'1.08'2$ 128'18% 160'02¢'s$ 9/6'269% - Ainb3 pue seoinosey Jo smoju| pauseq ‘seiiligel [elol 009
GS1'69Z°9% 601°28.°C$ 1z8'18% z£8°162°2$ 18€'679% uonisod / s}essy 1eN - Aunb3 [e1ol €16
2LLLESTS £0¥'20€'1$ 0$ ¥/6'208% GEL'9TSS UoISod JoN psolisalun $'¢Ls
£21°601$ 128°18$ 9v6'cT$ uonisod 19N psouIssy ¥'L1S
0/9°225°c$ 90L'6LV°1$ 868861 $ 901°66% syessy [ende) ul Juswisaau| 18N +'80S
$90JN0S9Y JO MOju} pallajad 00v

GL0°1£9°C$ L02'61$ 0% 612°896°C$ 685°CH$ ssilligelr [ejol 00¢
SYT'¥SY'CS 126°1$ 0% L9g'0rv'C$ £9£CL$ ssliijigerT JusLnd-UoN [ejol 0S¢
sanijiger] g3d0 pue uolsuad psniody /G¢

fel03ans SOAROY SSOUISNg | | [200T/RlEIS T PepuUsIg SISUINOA SOIOUD

- U usuodwos Z°9

Buisnon L8

910¢/0€/60 pud Jes A [eosid

upny sibuig/paypny :odA ] uolssiugng

Aewwng josyg souejeq apipp Apug

X1 ‘uojuaQ

(zeex1) Aouyiny BuisnoH uojueg




206%- SOLI0JUBAL| 913[0SqQ 10} SOUBMO|NY L S|
981'6$ SBUOJUBAU| €%
16L°LLS s]ossy JaylQ pue sosuadxd pledald zvl

Ajjigery jusing Jo JuswAed 10} paoLISay - Sjusw)saAl] GEL

PaIoLIISaY - SJUSUUISOAUL ZEL

09ge°22¢e$ paloulsaluf - SJUsSUISaAU| gl

101°0€2$ 0% SJUNO22Y [NQNO(J 10} SSOUBMOI[Y JO 19N ‘SO|QBAISOSY [B101 0Z)

1L 2|qBAI808Y 1S8I8lU] PaNIOdY 67|

¥80'2$- pneld - SJUNO2YY NYIGNO(T 1O} SOUBMO|lY 1°8Z )

89L'v$ Aianoosy pneld gzl

JUsNY) - 8jgeAladsy sebebuUop 9 ‘sueoT ‘seloN /ZL

¥92'se$- 1BY10 - SJUNOODY INIqNo(J 10} SdUBMOIlY 2'9CL

281 SJUBUS | - SJUNOY2Y [NJIQNO(J 10} 8dUBMO[Y 921

G/T'e$ SJUBUS ] - S|GBAISOaY SIUNOJOY 9Z1

€02°/12$ SNoaue|[esI - S|JBAIS0SY SIUNCOOY GZ|

JUSWIUIBAOSL) 18UJ0 - B[JEAIBD8Y SIUNCOIY $Z|

syoelold 18I0 ANH - 8lgeAI@08y SJUN02JdY ZZL

080't¥$ s108fold YHd - 8IgBAIS0aY SUNOJDY LZ|

159'861'2$ 0$ ysed [ejol 00l

saljjiger juaund Jo JuswiAed 10} PajOLISaY - YseD Gl

00£'sZ$ ﬂ_wogoo Aunoag Jueua] - Used {L|

€/1'G0L$ pajouIsay JBuyl0 - Used §Li

0$ JuswdolsAs(] pue UOHBZIUIBPO - PaJOUISSY - USBD ZL1L

¥85°220°C$ pajousalun - ysed Ll
[e1oL WIT3

910¢2/0€/60 :pug JesA [eosly

upny ajBui/paypny :2dA 1 uoissiugns

Aewwing joays aoueeqg apipn Aug

XL ‘uojusQ

(zegxl) Auoyiny Buisnoy uousq




yelpisaQiueg LLg

6/1'/¥3°8$ L66°8YS- $221N0S9Y JO MOINO paldja PUe SJ8sSsY [e10) 067

$32IN0SaY JOo MOINO paL_isd 00Z

98Z'LL19% 0$ S]OSSY JuUaLN)-UON [e101 08l

SOINJUSA JUIOf Ul SJUsUISaAUf 9/ |

sjessy By0 v/l

JUB1IN7) UON - 3|gBAIS03Y SjuBlD) €/

1SBd - JUB1IND) UON - 8|qeAlaoay sabeblop ¥ ‘sueo 's8loN /1

000°0S1$ 1US1IND-UON - 8|qeAie0ay sabeblo pue sueo| ‘SS)ION L/ |

982°196°G$ 0% uojiepaldag palejnwnody Jo JeN ‘siassy [ejded [Bjo) 091

alinonisedu] g9l

18.% ssaiboid ul uononisucd /9l

66G'1L11'9%- uofeloaldag paieinwinooy 99|

sjuswaaocidw] pjoyasea] 6oL

18/°10E$ uonensiuwpy - Aleuiyoey ¥ wawdinb3 ‘aunyuing 91|

29¥'15% sbujiemq - Alauiyoepy x uawdinb3 ‘ainjuing €91

568'5hT'eS sbuipiing z9l

096°CL¥'ES$ pueij 9L

€68°GELTS 166°87$- S]9SSY JUslLn) [BJ0) 0S|

oleg 10} P|I2H siessy Gl

0$ 166'87$- wolid ang weiboid 18u| L
felo) I3

910Z/0€/60 :PUT JEOA [EDSI4

upny obuis/payipny "adA) uoissiugng

Aewiwing 199yg asuejeg apipn Aiug

X1 ‘uousQg

(zeex 1) Awuoyiny Buisnoy uojueQq




saniger] 93dO PUE UoISUsSd Paniody

15¢

sonIfigen ¢ asv4 9s¢

jJuaLND UON - AjiIger] ueoT Gge

629'02$ JualIng UCN - S8ouasqy vmwmmcmanO panIody 5S¢

919°€Ey'$ 18Y10 - sauljigel] Juslino-uoN ¢€G6¢

sbuimoliog Bunesad( - uaung Jo 19N 199Q wial-buo zZge

_ obebuoypy/siosloid [eude) - jusung jo 18N ‘1qeq wuel-buo] |Lgg

612°221% 166'87$- saqery jusuny [e1jol QLe

wauny - Ayjigery ueoT gye

0$ 166°87$- 0] anQ - weiboid L] J¥E

T96°'L1$ 1810 ~ seNl|igelT peniody 9pe

sanijiger jusungd BylQo Sve

sBuimo.iog BuietadQ - 199q Wiel-BU0T JO UOILOH JUaLIND) e

fexdeD - 1geq wsl-Buo Jo UoOd Jualn) £

S16'2¢$ ONUBASY pauleaun Zye

00€°'6Z$ sysodeq AlINoag eus | LyS

JUSWIUIBAOL) IaylQ - 8jqeAed SJUNOJOY CE$

spolold YHd - olqehed Junoooy zeg

swelbold YHd dNH - 21qeAed sjunodoy Leg

a|qeAed 1salalu] panIooy Gzg

Ayngen AousBupuo) peniooy 1Z¢

76£'8C$ uoIlOd JUBLIn) - seouasqy pajesuadwo) paniddy zze

1zLe$ o|qeAed soxe] [|olAed/ebepp pantooy LZe

anq 1sed sAeq 06< 9]qeAed SJUNoadY €€

180°'1€$ sAeq 06 => 9|qeAed Ssjunoddy ZL§&
oL win3

8102/0¢/60 -pu3 e [edsid

upny o|buig/peypny :odA) uoissiugng

Kiewiwing 199yg asuefeg apipa Ayug

X1 ‘uojusQg

(zeeXL) Auoyiny BuisnoH uojusQg




BLLL¥8°8S L66°8P - - Aunb3J pue s©01N0ssY JO SMOLU| pauIssq ‘selilIqerT [e10L 009
§51°592°9% 0 uonisod / sjossy 19N - Aynb3 [ejol ¢1G
ZLLLE0'TS uonisod 1eN pejouisaiun ¥'ZLS
£22°50L$ uonisod 1oN pepousey ¥ LLS
019'225'c$ S1sSY [eide) uj jusWssAul 18N 805

$S9IN0STY JO MOYU| paused 00F
720'285°2$ L66°9r$- senyiger [el1oL 00¢
SYZHSrTs 0% sapljiger] JusLND-UON [eJ0] OGE

lelol W3

9102/0€/60 -pUT JESA [EOSlS

Hpny s|buig/paypny :odA 1 uoissiwgng

Aewuwng jeayg oouejeqg opipn Anug

X1 ‘uojuaQ

(zeex1) Awoyiny BuisnoH uojueq




¥20°089% €05°ces 808'LELS €L1'vZs$ ssleleg aAjelsIUILIPY 00L L6

9es'leL'els 0e'€ZeS 0$ 698171 LS £9€'992°C1$ SnusAsy [e101 0000.

PaloLISaY - SWOOU] JUSUIISBAU| 0002/

956'08%- 956°05%- sjessy feyde) 40 ojeg U0 SSO7 4O URS 0091/

€9¥'8L0'LS col'cle$ 1v¥'112$ L6Z'eLe$ snusAsy Jeyio 00SL.

8/8°71$ 8/821$ Aion0oey pneld o0vLZ

S1988Y 10 91eS 10 1S0D OlELL

oleg Jo} ploH s1essy Jo uonisodsig wol spaasoid Q0EL.

swoou] jsalsiu| ebebuow 00ZLZ

STAA S61% or8'L$ oris pajoLisalun - sWodu] JusuwssAul 00LLL

SlUBIS) JUSLIUISAOS) JaU10 0080/

0$ enusAsy 984 [e10] 00.0.

s$8&84 1BUI0 05.0L

884 80IAI8G BUIM UolH 0%/0L

004 Buidasy| joogd 0€.0Z

294 ucmEmmmcm_Z 1essyY 02/0/

894 wswabeue|\ 0LL0.

sjuelo [ended 0190/

60°088°LL$ ¥60°088°L1L$ suelg bupesedO YHd ANH 0090/

286°898% 0% 0% 285°898% 0% snusAsy Jueus| [ejo] 00S0.L

652°2$ 652°C$ JBUlQ - SnusAsy Jueus] 00¥0.

£2£°998% £2€'998% SNUBASY [ejusy Jueus] 18N 00£0.
lelolang sonApy sseuisng L | [eooelels 7  Popuaig SI8LDNOA AU

- Jun weuodwon z'9

Buisnoy L7881

910¢/0%/60 -puz Jea| [eosld

Aewwing asuadxg pue anusaay apips Ajug
X1 ‘uojueqg
(zeex1) Auoyiny BuisnoH uojue(

upny sibuig/psypny :2dA | uoissiwagng




saiN - suopnguiue) Jysusyg svkoldwl 00.£6

9€.'12% vZ6'L$ z18'6e$ ames 009¢6

logqe 00se6

[end 00v€6

16€'2% 16E°LS SBD 00cc6

15 FAA LY S1'02$ 890'22$ AoLws 002E6

£88'v2% vy orr'6l$ I81BpA 00LE6

9G¢°9% 0$ 0$ 95¢£'9$ 0$ S80IAIBG JUBUS] [BJ0] 00526

0z£'9% 0z€'9% 1810 - s9oIMBG JURBUS ] O0YC6

S90IAISG JUBUS | - SUORNQUIUO) JiBuag aakoldw3 00LZ6

9e$ 9e$ SIS0Q Uonedojdy 00226

salejes - S80IM9S JUBUS] 00LZ6

o990 wawabeuep 19sSY 00026

ovl‘e6e’L$ Zre'LoLs 0$ 0./£'0.2$ 826°096% sAjesiulWLpY - Bunessdo (el 00016

TR RARS 965'8.% 009°6% z81'6e$ By10 00616

PESYISAQ Pa1BI0|lY (OL8L6

128'92$ 0ze'es 606C$ Zv9'sLs [eAel]l Q08L6

LLL1ES LLL'LES osuadx3 [ebe 0016

62r'ceTs 00t'01$ 956'82% €L0'v61$ sesuadx3 80WO 00916

ogL'ozes 112'9% 290'9e$ V6L LLLS SAJRASIUIWPY - SUOHNQLIUOD Jysusyg sakojldws 00SL6

zi8% 0.2% 209% Bunexse pue BuISIIBADPY 00116

o0 Buidasy-joog 0LELE

599'G6$ §99'65$ 99 Juswebeuely 00¢L6

000°ZLS 66'2$ 001°'6$ 526'8% sood Bunipny 00216
[e103ans semAgoy sseuisng L | [eaoT/elElS T pepuald SISUONOA SO104T

- j1un euodwo] 29

BuisnoH |/8v1

910¢/0€/60 ‘pus lesA [eosld

Aewwng ssuadxg pue anuaasy apipg Aaug
X1 ‘uojuaQ
(zeex1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uojueq

upny ojbuis/peypny odA] uoissiugng




sobeBHOW -19ep ped 00596
689% 689% sjuay Jjueua] -1qep ped 00¥96
soxe] Jo nal Ul sjuswAed 00S96
660'G9%$ aLL'es rEV'8LS 68h'ers seouesqy pejesuadwiol 01296
0e.'9z2$ £96°'8% 6/5'1$ 881°91L$ sosuadxz [eloueD J2UI0 00296
¥18'8¢$ G96°9% 0$ 99£'¢L$ £87'8$ swiniweld adueinsui [e101 00196
01L0'6$ LZs 6E€'C$ 09v'L$ adueinsul 1SUYlQ IV 0F196
eel'/$ 052°1$ viz'es 691°C$ uonesuadwo) s,UsUBIOM 0£196
196% 9€ls 99¢$ S9L% aoueinsy| Alliger] 0Z196
$01L'91$ 898'c$ 15°1$ 689'v$ soueinsu| Apsdold 01196
89¢'L1$ €L1'v% 0$ $65°9$ 0$ S80IM8G 9A109]01d [e10L 00056
SOIAIDG 9A09)01d - SUOIINQUIUCY Jyouag aakoldw 00556
1810 - S8dlAeg BAIdl0ld 00ES6
89¢'LLS €LL'%$ $65°9% $1S00) OBIUOD IBUJQO - SROIAIRS 9AROS10Id 00256
JogeT] - S90IAISS BAIJ0910Id 00166
609'virv$ 2/6'19% 0$ vL1'8/€$ €25'V$ adueusUiB [BIOL 00016
¥19'89% 178'9% 1£7'19% soueusiulely AleulpIQ - suolnguuc) eusg sakoldws 00SY6
€16'/G51$ oLr'ees SL6'1TLS 886'C$ sjoe)UO) suopesedQ pue soueusjulely ABUIPIO Q0SY6
ov8'LS$ zvs'ls €9/'29% GES'L$ pue sjeuele - suoleredQ pue soueusiUiey AEUIPIO 00ZF6
YT orLs erL'YLS 660°CELS JogeT - suoneladQ pue soueusjue AlBUIDIO 00L16
€52°20L$ Trs'izs 0$ VLIS 0$ saniiN el 000¢6
asuadx3 seillin JoYIO 008£6

[e103anS somAoy Sseusng | | [e00/eIBIS T Popusig SISUONOA SO104G

- 1un jusuodwod 29

Buisnoy L/gvL

9102/0€/60 ‘PUT JESA [BOSIH

upny sibulg/payipny :odA ] uolssiwgng

frewwing asuadxg pue anNUdAdY IPIMA Alnug

X1 ‘uojuaQ

(z6eXL) Awoyiny BuisnoH uojueq




006°252%- 005'152%- InO Jeysueq BunetsdO 0Z001

005°252% 005°252% ‘ uj Joysued Bunesedo 01001

zsr'igs'els 206'vreS 0% 129'6¢6$ ord AR AR sosuadx3 [elol 00006

asuadx3 sy syun bullema 00826

Spun4 [BIUSWILISAOL) - JUsWAed |ediduld 199 00../6

Spun4 [BJUSWLIBACS) - sAepnQ feuded 009/6

$88S07] pnel{ 005.6

9%9'25e$ 699°69% cLy'651L$ $95°€T$ asuadx3 uoneoaided 00v.6

gcLiiees 8T.'1€€$ ul-Aupgenod dvH 05€26

£22'768°0L$ £ZZ'V68°01$ sjuswiAed souessissy Buisnoy 00€/6

pazijeudes-uop - $9ss07 Ajensed 00Z2./6

souBUSUIBIA AleulpioRXT 00L/6

189'229°LLS LL0'8YS 0% G59°LIES GG6°20TLLS sesuadx3 Bunesedo JeAo snusasy BunesadQ Jo $s80X3 00026

§68'801°2$ ££7'6/Z$ 0% YLT0LLS 807°€90°1$ sssuedx3 bupesedo [e101 00696

0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0% 1500 uoezplowy pue asusdxd Jsesel| [BJ0L 0096

$]S0Q anss| puog Jo uoljeziuowy (€/.96

(wie | BuoT pue Lwoyg) sjgeied s9joN UO ISelalul 0Z/96

a|qeled (spuog Jo) sbebuopy 10 1sa10lU| 01/96

GLETTLS 6ELTLS 8 20.2'02$ viv'68% sesuadxg [esouan) JBYIO [BI0L 00096

osuadxg 9ouUeIBASS 00896

161'6Z% 161'62% 18410 - 19ep ped 00996
[ejoians semAoY sseuisng | | [Boo/emeIS € popuaId SISUINOA SIAOLY

- 1un Wwauodwod Z'9

BuisnoH L/8¥1L

910¢/0¢/60 -pu3 Jes A [eosld

1pny ojbuIg/paypny :odA 1 uoissiLgng

Aewwing asuadxg pue anuaaAdy apipn Aug

X1 ‘uoiusQg

(z6eX1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uojua(q




9v6'cZ$ 6'cT$ Anb3 sjuswiAed souessissy BuisnoH 08111
Lirb'S529% Lyy'GZ9% Ajnb3 so4 sAeasIUIWPY O/LLLL
J8UJQ - SIUNOo2Y [NfIqNo( Jo} aduemoly ul ssbueud 0oLl
Buijemq - sjunoooy jnjjqno( 10} @duemoly ul sebueyd 06011
Aliqer] sujeusyg aourIoAaSg/WIS] [e1oads ul sebueyd 080LL
Allger uonisuel | uoisuad pazjubooslun ul sebueyd 0011
soueleg Ajgert jusbuguo) ul sebueyd 0901 L
aouejeg @ouasqy pajesuadwio) ui sebueyd 0G0LL
Uoj02LI0 ) pue sigjsuel] Ainb3 ‘sjuswysnipy pousd Joud 0v0L1
LI01ZL'9$ 10Z'9¥5°2$ 128°18% 060'164°2$ 196'G69% Aunb3 Buiuuibeg ogolL L
0$ 0$ 0$ 0$ 0% sjusAed [edioulld 199Q fenuuy pasinbay 0201 L
P80'vPLS Z06°5€Z$ 0$ 8GZ G- 095'9v$- (210 (Japun) JoAQ enusAay [ejo] jo (Aousioyaq) sseox3 00001
0$ 005°252$ 0$ 0052628 0$ (sesn) seounog Butoueuy JoUO €101 00L0L
1nQ - weiboiy pue 108loid usamiaq siajsuel] +6001
u] - j08foid pue weiboid usamiaq si1sjsuel]l €6001
NQ Jajsuel] ysen ssaox3g 1odloid J1oju] 26001
u| JeJsuel] yseq ssaoxd 108loid 18] 165001
(sso7/uren 1eN) swey [eeds 08001
sso/ules) JoN ‘swe)f Aeulpioelix3 0001
sojeg Auadoig wouy spasodocld 09001
spuog pue sueoT ‘S9J0N WoU} Spaadald 0G00L
1un Jusuodwo) oywol) sivjsuel] bunesedO 0F00L
EoEEm>o® Aewud oywoy sivjsuel] BunesadO 0£00L
[#1019ns SONIAOY SsousNg | | [e00T/emIS g Pepueld SISUOTOA SIIOUD

-1un usuodwo) Z'g

BuisnoH 1/g8¥L

9102/0€/60 ‘pu3 JesA [eosld

upny ejbuig/paypny :odA ] uolssiwgng

Aewwing asuadxg pue anuaAdy apIp Alnug

X1 ‘uojusQ

(zeexl) Awoyiny BuisnoH uojus(Q




spun4 Joyoed BuisnoH jusweoejday LOGEL

suewfed 90IA19S 19890 4440 01SEL

saseyoind ainoniselu 099l L

saseyoind sjusweanoidwi pjoysses 0S9LL

saseyoind aAnesiuiwpy - juswdmb3 g auinpuing 0y9LL

saseyaind Bujiemq - weawidinb3 g ainyuing Q¢oLL

seseyoind Buipiing 0zl L

saseyoind puem 0L9ll

ysed ssa0Xg 0.CL1L

21961 109l 9v081 paseaT SYUON Jiun J0 JoqWNN 0OLcLL

08002 8z/lL zse8L SlgelleAy SYJUCN Jun 061L1L1L
[ejo1ang SSNIAOY ssoulsng | [ed0T/e1E)S T popusid SLOUONOA SIIOUD

- U usuodwo) Z'9

BuisnoH 1/8°vL

9102/0¢/60 ‘pud JesA [eos]q

Aewwng asuadxg pue anuaAay apIpa Ajug

(zeex1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uojueq

X1 ‘uolueq

1pny sjBuls/paypny :odA1 uoissiugns




000°L1L$ sea4 Bunipny 00216

¥20°089% souejeg SANBASIUIWPY 00LL6

118'G29°C1L$ 599'G5$- SNUBASY [B10L 0000.L

paIoL]Say - 8WOdU[ JUSWISBAU] 000Z/

966°05%- sjessy [elde) [0 8[eg Uo SS07 10 UBS (09L/

86.°296% §99'GG$- SNuUsAY JBUIO 00SLL

8/8'TL$ Kisnooay pneld 00vLL

S}essY JO 8leg 101s0D 0LEl/

8]esg Jol pjeH s1essy o uonisodsig wolj spaadold 00t/

awoosu] 1saayu| abebLoN 00ZL.L

SIS pa1oL]salu - 8WodU| JUSWISaAU} Q0LL.

SJUBIS) JUSWUIBAOL) JaylQ 0080/

0% 0% 8nusAsyY 984 [eJ0} (00.0.L

sea4 LUyl 05.0.

884 8JIAleg 8ul ol] 0%L0L

894 Buidssy) xoog 020/

094 Juswabeue 19SSy 022072

o984 uswabeue 01202

swels jeyden 01902

¥60°088°L1$ swuelsy BugeladO YHd ANH 00902

785'898% 0% SnusAsy JUeU8] [e}J0] 00S0.L

652°C$ 1BYI0 - 8nusAsy jueus| ooy0L

£2£°998% SNUBASY [ejusy Jueus] 18N 00€0.L
[gioL. N

9102/0¢/60 ‘pu3 JesA [edsld

fewuwng asuadxg pue anuaAady apipa Alzug

(zeex1) Awoyny Buisnop uojueQ

XL ‘uopueQ

upny sjbuig/paypny :edA} uoissiwgng




asuadx3 ssllN JeYIO 008€6

seninn - suonnquuod Jysusg sskoldwl 00.£6

9¢€2'12% lsmes 009¢6

JogeT 00GE6

end 00vE6

162 sen 00ee6

evz'ers Apupea 00Ze6

£88'1Z$ Islep 001€6

95€°9$ 0$ S80IAIeG JUBUS] [B]O] 00SZ6

0z£°9% JaYlQ - S90S JUBUSL 00VZ6

S$9J2IAIDG JUBUS] - sUoiINgUiuod jijsuag ®®>O_QEM_ 00gce

9e$ SIS0 UoNed0IBY 00226

sale|egs - s8dIABeg JueUs | Q0126

2994 wcm_.cmmmcm_\/_ 19SSy 000¢6

SIIEE LS §99'65$- sAjels|uWpY - Bunessdo [eloL 00016

8/g'/Z1% J8ylO 00616

peayIsAQ palesolly 01816

128°928 feael] 00816

LLZLES ssuadxd [efs7 00/16

6TY'€ETS sesuadx3 9040 00916

0£1'022$ SAIEASIUIIPY - SUOHNALIUOD Jysuag sskoldw3 00516

zi8% Bunexie|y pue BulsIIOADY 001 L6

294 Buidesy-joog 0lgL6

0$ 599°GG4- 99 juswsbeuel 00€L6
18101 NI

9102/0¢/60 ‘pu3 JesA [edsld

Aewiwng asuadxg pue anuaAay apIp Aug

(zeex1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uojue(q

X1 ‘uojusqg

upny sjbuig/pa)ipny :odAL uoissiugng




162°62$ JaylO - 199p peg 00996
sebeBbuo - 19ep ped 00596
689% sjusy jueus] - 1gep peg 00¥96
soXe] Jonaiq ul mucmE\Amn_ 00€96
860°G9% seoussqy pejesusdwiol 01296
0€2°92% sosuadxd [elsusy J8Ul0 00296
v18'82$ 0$ slwinjwaid a8dueinsul 01 00196
0LO'GS 8oURINSU} JBUIO IV OFL96
eeLls co_umwcmaEOO S,UBSWHIOAA 0E196
195$ soueinsu| Aliger] 02196
POL'OLS souelnsu| Ausdold 01196
89¢'LL$ 0% SOOIAIBS BAROSI0Id [BIO1. 00056
SOOIAIDS DAIJ0B]01d - SUoNgLIUoY ljsuag m@»oﬁEm 00SS6
JeylO - SODIAIBS SAIOSI0Id 00£S6
89¢'LLS 1800 J0RIUOD JBYIQ - SSOIMBS BAIORI0Id 00756
JogeT] - SeJIAIeS BAN08I0Id Q0L S6
609'7FPS 0$ soueuBUE [BJO] 000V6
¥19°89% 2oueUlUIR|A \CNC_EO - sSuUoiINQIIuUoY Jusuag ®®>O_QEM_ 00St6
€1L6/61% SjoelluoD wco_um.hmao pue adueuUSIUIE|A \Cmc__o._o 00Er6
or8'LLS pue sjeusielp - wCO_umgwao pue adueusjuie| \CNE_P_O 002y6
reiavLs JogeT] - wcozm\_mao pue adueusiuiB \CNEEO 00Lve
£62'20LS 0$ ssiin [elol 0006
|eyol WIT3

9102/0¢/60 ‘pud JesA [edsid

upny ajbuis/paypny :adA ] uolssiwang

Arewung asuadxg pue snudaAsy apipa Ajug

X1 ‘uojusQg

(z6exL) Awouiny Buisnoy uojueg




JUSWILIBAOS) AlellLd Oy/wol) s19jsuel]j Bunesado 0g00L
0% 005°'252% IO Jeysue) BupessdO 02001
0$ 0082528 ujgysuel | BuperadQ 0LO0L
[BLLES'ELS 599'66$" sosuadx3 [e101 00006
asuadx3 ey suun Bullema 008.6
SpUN [BlUSWIWIBAOY) - JuBWAEB jedpulld 190 00/./6
spun4 [eluswLIBA0S) - sAepnQ [euded 0096
$98s807 pheld 0056
9v9'252$ asuadx3 uonesideq 00¥.6
8L 1EES ur-Auligerod dvH 0S€/6
€22'768°01$ sjusluhed souelsissy BuisnoH 00€/6
pazijeuded-Uop - sasso] AlenseD 0026
soueUBURK AdeuiploelXxg Q0L/6
1892291 1S 0% soasuadxg BuneiadQ 19n0 snusasy Bunelsdp Jo sseox3 §00./6
061°€50°C$ §99°GG%- sesuadx3 Bunelsdo [e10L 00696
0$ 0% 1S0Q uoneziowy pue ssusdxy Jsalsl] [eJOL 00,96
$1S0Q 8nss| puog Jo uoljezipowy 0£/96
(wia ] HuoT pue poys) sjqehed SSJON UO 1saI8lU]| 0296
s|gefed (spuog 10) abeBoW Jo 1salelul OL/296
SLETZLS 0% sosuadxz [esousn) J8UIO [BI0L 00096
asuadxg aouelonaS 00896

1oL WIT3

910¢/0¢/60 -puz JesA [Bosld

upny o|BuIS/psYpNY :9dA | uoissiwgng

Arewwing asuadxg pue sanusAay apip Ajug

XL ‘uojuaq

(zeex1) Awoyiny Buisnoy uoluag




08002 o|qe|leAy SUYJUOWN HUN 06LLIL
ov6'eZ$ Aunb3 syuswAed souejsissy BuisnoH. 08LLL
Vi'szas Anb3 o84 sAnessiulwWPY 0LLLL

Jay10 - SJUN022Y [NjIqno( Jo) ssuemo|y ul sabueys QoLLL

Buiflam - SJUNo022Yy NIgno( 1o} asueMo|ly Ul sabueyd 06011

Ajiger sysuag aoueIsAsg /WIS ] [e1oadg ul sabueyd 0901 L

Aljger] uonisuel] uoisuad paziubooaiun ul sebueyn 0011

souejeq Ajpger uebuyuod uj sebueyd 0901 L

2ouejeg 9ouasqy palesuadwon ui sabueyd QGOLL

UOI1081107) pue slgjsuel| Aunb3 ‘sjuswisnipy pousad Joud 00l L

LI0'1ZL'9$ Anb3z Buuuibsg 0goLL
0% sjusihed [edidulid 1ge@ [enuuy painbay 0zZ0LL
¥80' LS 0% [e101 (4opufy) JOAQ BNUSASY [e10] JO (Aousioyeq) $seoX3 00001
0% 0$ (sosn) seoinog Buoueuy Jayio [EI0L 00101
N - weiboig pue 1oloid usamlaq slojsuel] $6001

uj - 109loid pue weibold usamyaq sisajsuel] €600L

INQO Jajsuel] ysen ssaox3g sloid 1| 2600l

U] Jajsuel] yse ) ssaox3g 19s8lold 9] L6001

(ssoutes) JoN) swey| [el0edg 08001

SSOT/UlRD 19N ‘sway| Areujpioenx3 0001

so|eg Ausadoid woly speaoold 09001

spuog pue sueoT ‘S8joN Wol) spassold 0S00L

1un weuodwon oywoly sisjsuel] Bunetado 0v00L

[BejoL WIN3

910¢2/0e/60 ‘puz JesA [eosid

upny ojbuis/pelpny :odA| uolssiugng

Arewwng ssuadxg pue snusasy apipp Aiug

X1 ‘uousQg

(zeex1) Awouiny Buisnoy uojueq




spun4 Joyoe Buisnol juswaoe|dey

LO6EL

sjuswiAed 99I9S 1990 4440

0lsel

saseyoing ainonnseliu]

09911

saseyoind syusweanoldwy pjoysses

0s911

$9sBUDING 9ARRLSIUILLPY - Juswdinbg § sinyjuing

ovolLl

saseyoind Buijjemq - Juswdinb3 w® ainyuing

0e9tk L

saseyaind buipping

0c9lL

saseydlnd pue

0l9L1

ysen ssaoxgy

0/¢LL

Lv96l

paseaT SYIUOW HUM JO JaquinN

Oictt

|ejo]

W3

910¢2/0€/60 :pU3 JESA [BdSld

upny ejbuig/peypny :odAj uoissiugng

Alewuing asuadxg pue anuaAsy apIpA Anug

X1 ‘uoyueq

(z6ex1) Auouyny BuisnoH uocjuseQq




	2014 Audit
	2015 Audit
	2016 Audit

